CITY OF AVON PARK

Highlands County, Florida
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
January 23, 2023, 6:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, 123 E. Pine Street, Avon Park, FL
This meeting will be held in person at the above address.
You are welcome to attend via ZOOM, if you wish. To enter this meeting, you must use the ZOOM app and
use code
599 309 2787 No Password needed

A. CALLTO ORDER:
1. Invocation
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. RollCall

®

CITIZENS/OUTSIDE AGENCIES

o

CONSENT AGENDA:
4. Minutes, January 9, 2023, City Council Regular Meeting - City Clerk, Chrissy Hardman

D. ACTION AGENDA
5. Public Hearing: Second Reading, Ordinance No. 01-2023, Vacating and Closing a Platted Right-of-
Way, Twin Lakes Project- City Attorney, Jerry Buhr

6. DRAFT Lease between City of Avon Park and Nasgrass, Inc. - City Attorney, Jerry Buhr

7. Council to vet four (4) applicants for the Southside CRA Alternate Vacancy -City Clerk, Chrissy
Hardman

8. Council to vet applicant Donna Parks for the Avon Park Police Pension Board- City Clerk, Chrissy
Hardman

9. Draft RFP City Owned Property (101 W. Main Street)- City Manager, Mark Schrader

E. STAFF UPDATES/ADMINISTRATION
10. Discussion of Possible Foreclosure Action - Code Enforcement Supervisor, Randy LaBelle

F. ATTORNEY UPDATES
G. COUNCIL DISCUSSION/UPDATES:

H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT
11. Regular Updates from the City Manager

I. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
J.  ADJOURN: The next City Council Regular Meeting is scheduled for Monday, February 13, 2023, at 6:00
p.m.

Any person who might wish to appeal any decision made by the City Council of the City of Avon Park, Highlands County,
Florida, in public hearing or meeting is hereby advised that he/she will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
purpose, he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which will include the testimony
and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. Any person with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to
participate should contact the City Manager prior to the meeting.



Agenda Item Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023

Subject: Minutes of the City Council Regular Meeting, January 9, 2023
Item No.: C-4

Placed on Agenda by: City Clerk, Christian Hardman

Staff Review: Yes

Attorney Review:
Recommended Motion(s): Approve Consent Agenda
Documentation:

e Draft Minutes, City Council Regular Meeting, January 9, 2023

Background:



CITY OF AVON PARK
Highlands County, Florida

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
January 09, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.

A. OPENING: CTO - 6:00 PM

1. Invocation: Councilmember Brittany McGuire
2. Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Anderson
3. Roll Call: City Clerk, Christian Hardman

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Member Brittany McGuire
Member Shelly Mercure
Member Berniece Taylor
Deputy Mayor, Jim Barnard
Mayor Garrett Anderson

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager, Mark Schrader
City Attorney, Gerald Buhr
City Clerk, Christian Hardman
Code Enforcement Supervisor, Randy LaBelle
Finance Director, Melody Sauerhafer
Fire Chief, Andrew Marcy
|.T. Administrator, Matt Byrd

B. CITIZENS/OUTSIDE AGENCIES:

4. Proclamation Agricultural and Labor Program, Inc.- ALP| Executive Office Manager, Maria Crespo

Mayor Anderson read a Proclamation for the Agricultural and Labor Program, Inc. supporting and
recognizing the January 28", Annual Corporate Meeting and Luncheon as a “Legacy of Leadership
with Purpose and Positive Results.”

5. Presentation by Renaissance Planning and FDOT- Main St. Lane Repurposing

Frank Kalpakis of Renaissance Planning and Roxanne Lake of FDOT presented the Main Street Lane
Repurposing Project for State Road 17 (Main Street). Kalpakis covered the project’s purpose and-

Page 1 of 21



the analytical framework. The purpose is to provide on street parking, bicycle lanes, landscaping,
and enhanced pedestrian facilities. The design process will integrate community perspectives;
getting community involvement to align with its goals. There will also be a focus on traffic flow.
Kalpakis covered the geographic characteristics of Main Street and the project’s potential. The
intention is to align with regional traffic patterns and demands.

Mayor Anderson made note that the project boundaries are from north to south, with Main Street
running east to west. He asked will the project be for the lanes or will the scope go beyond that?
Kalpakis said they will look a short distance beyond Main Street to understand where people are
and how they access the area. However, their strategies and recommendations will focus on Main
Street. Mayor Anderson asked if the project may include enhancing or rehabilitating some
roadways leading to Main Street? Kalpakis said he was unsure whether they would consider
pavement conditions for local or connecting streets to State Road 17 (Main Street). However,
during the evaluation, they may find items that need to be brought forward; making
recommendations for strategies. Mayor Anderson asked in his experience, has a 3R project ever
involved moving or rehabilitating curbs? Kalpakis said it is possible. They may implement street or
landscaping that would require a new curb.

Mayor Anderson said if there is a checklist of things the city needs to do, i.e., ripping up asphalt,
then we should install as much infrastructure as possible while it is open. City Attorney Buhr asked
if Kalpakis knows some businesses are requesting outside seating; suggesting they also consider
micro-mobility in their designs.

Councilmember Taylor asked if the project will cover both sides of SR-17 (Main Street) to which
Kalpakis said yes. She inquired whether there will be sidewalks removed or moved? He said they
will collect feedback, such as Councilmember Taylor’s comments; the information will show the
different opportunities for the project. Councilmember Taylor asked when the project is estimated
for completion? Roxann Lake said it takes approximately 14 to 18-months for the design; the lane
repurposing is not to move curbing but to work within the existing framework. The design crew will
look at side roads, drainage, and other opportunities. With limited funding, they may stick to
resurfacing only. There will be opportunities to speak with the project manager.

Councilmember Mercure asked from start-to-finish, would they estimate project completion at 18-
months? Kalpakis said for the evaluation. Councilmember Mercure asked when starting such a
project, what is the completion time? Lake said typically, when discussing resurfacing, the estimate
is 2-years between design and construction.

Councilmember Taylor expressed concern for Main Street businesses, then asked how long
construction will take? Lake was unsure but estimated at 9 to 12 months. Mayor Anderson said
they will not know until they have an idea of the depth of the project. Lake explained how the
project manager would identify the timeline.

C. CONSENT AGENDA:
6. Minutes- December 12, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting- City Clerk, Christian Hardman

MOTION, made by Councilmember Mercure, seconded by Councilmember McGuire, to approve
agenda item “C-6.”

Page 2 of 21



AYE: McGuire, Mercure, Taylor, Barnard, Anderson
NAY: None
Motion Passed: 5-0

D. ACTION AGENDA:

7. Public Hearing: Second Reading, Ordinance No. 20-2022, Clarifying Master Water Wastewater
Billing- City Attorney, Jerry Buhr

City Attorney Buhr read the short title for Ordinance No. 20-2022, respectively.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVON PARK FLORIDA, PROVIDING RECITALS AS TO THE COUNCIL
INTENT; AMENDING CITY CODE SECTION 98-238 BY ADDING PROVISIONS FOR MASTER
WASTEWATER METERS FOR SOME FORMS OF USE, AND PROVIDING FOR WASTEWATER BILLING
TO BE BASED ON SUCH WASTEWATER METER RATHER THAN WATER METER(S); PROVIDING FOR
INITIAL RATES FOR MASTER WASTEWATER METERS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION AND REPEAL
OF CONFLICTING CODES, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

City Attorney Buhr said the ordinance applies to the Nucor system; they have wells onsite,
therefore anything registered on the meter will not accurately reflect what they are doing at the
location. He said there will be other situations where the ordinance will apply, for example,
subdivisions with a master meter.

Public Hearing opened at 6:23 p.m.

There was no public participation.

Public Hearing closed at 6:24 p.m.

MOTION, made by Deputy Mayor Barnard, seconded by Councilmember Mercure, to approve
agenda item “D-7,” Ordinance No. 20-2022.

AYE: McGuire, Mercure, Taylor, Barnard, Anderson
NAY: None
Motion Passed: 5-0

8. First Reading, Ordinance No. 01-2023, Vacating and Closing a Platted Right-of-Way, Twin Lakes
Project- City Attorney Jerry Buhr

City Attorney Buhr read the short title for Ordinance No. 01-2023, respectively.

AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND CLOSING A PLATTED ROADWAY NEVER USED BY THE PUBLIC
LOCATED IN THE CITY OF AVON PARK, FLORIDA, AT THE REQUEST OF ADJACENT OWNER BOSTON
MINING COMPANY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Justin Ham of Kimley-Horn said Ordinance No. 01-2023 is part 3 of the Twin Lakes project. He
summarized the previous discussion related to S. Lake Boulevard, which had occurred during the-

Page 3 of 21



discussion from the December 2022 meeting. Ham showed an aerial photo of two Right-of-Ways
(ROWs) in relation to S. Lake Boulevard; saying the request to vacate and close roadways applies to
a section of road in the southwest corner and in between two parcels (in the main parcel’s north
side). Ham said they do not use the road other than for farm operations. There are no community
effects, it is a continuation of the previous approval.

Mayor Anderson said allowed public participation, saying they would limit it to 3-minutes per
speaker.

Arnold Wilson of 1412 S. Carolina Avenue asked if Garrett Road to the Raceway (gas station) is the
ROW being considered? Mayor Anderson said it is not. Wilson asked where the developer got his
information concerning the negative effects, such as illegal dumping and the time differential
when driving each route (discussed at the December meeting)? He also asked if the developer
considered working together with the Lacey Hill neighborhood? Ham said he drove the routes
himself. Regarding illegal dumping, they submitted photographs to him. He reminded everyone
this was all discussed during the previous meetings for which the road closure (S. Lake Blvd) has
already been approved.

Thelma Foster of 409 E. Canfield Street said she is concerned because the proposal is to eliminate
the road. Mayor Anderson explained how the Shell rock road (S. Lake Blvd) was vacated at the
December meeting. The proposal on the table is for two different ROWSs. Foster was concerned
because she cannot use the road to go fishing. Mayor Anderson reassured her she will still be able
to fish in the lake; the road with the boat ramp is not a part of this request.

Councilmember Taylor asked if they used the ROWs for privately owned vehicles (POVs); if the
easement leads out to Lake Anoka, and is it closer to Hal McRae Blvd than Garrett Road? She also
asked if they can use the easement as a ROW for vehicles for residents in the community to travel,
since we cut Garrett Road off? Ham said once vacated, the public cannot use it. Councilmember
Taylor said it is not vacated yet. She asked why this easement cannot be a route for the
community? Councilmember McGuire asked where would a motorist be going along that road?
Mayor Anderson said it goes to Lake Anoka; the other ROW (S. Lake Blvd) was a pathway to get to
US 27. The ROW she is referencing does not lead to anywhere but the lake.

Councilmember Taylor said she is sure it leads to the other side. Mayor Anderson said it leads
directly to Lake Anoka. Even if it did, the road would be cutting through the subdivision, which is
still a conflict. Ham said there is no road there and a portion of it is in the county. Councilmember
McGuire said there was not another road. Councilmember Taylor said when the farm workers
reached the end of the ROW, they drove along the edge of the lake. Mayor Anderson said when
she stated “farm workers,” there were people working on the ROWs. Councilmember Taylor said
the utility trucks and vehicles that the farm uses (the farming equipment). The drivers drove to the
end of the road, riding along the edge of the lake. Ham was unsure how they travelled; however,
he imagined they turned off before the edge of Lake Anoka, cutting through the orange groves.

MOTION, made by Councilmember McGuire, seconded by Councilmember Mercure, to approve
agenda item “D-5,” Ordinance No. 01-2023.

AYE: McGuire, Mercure, Barnard, Anderson

NAY: Taylor

Motion Passed: 4-1

Page 4 of 21



Council to vet Chet Brojek for reappointment to the Avon Park Housing Authority Board- City Clerk,
Chrissy Hardman

The City Clerk summarized the details of the request for the Avon Park Housing Authority (APHA)
reappointment of Chet Brojek. Mayor Anderson said Brojek is a fine man and upstanding citizen
who has done an excellent job serving on the APHA board.

Chet Brojek of 3310 Par Road, Sebring, said it has been a pleasure to serve for 12-years. He has
served with 3-executive directors. His concern and love for the city is his motivation to serve for at
least 2-more years. Brojek expressed his gratitude to the council for their consideration.

Councilmember Taylor spoke of discussions in September or October (2022) related to taking the
city in a direction it has not been going. Mayor Anderson wanted new ideas on the table. She
knows Brojek very well but believes it is time to put fresh ideas on the table; not only for the
Planning and Zoning (P&Z) board, but for all. Councilmember Taylor thought that was what the
council agreed on. Although they may know the individuals, she thinks it is time that Avon Park
goes in a total new direction than where it has been. Brojek has served 12-years. Councilmember
Taylor said she feels it was time for someone else to be given an opportunity.

Mayor Anderson said Brojek is a forward-thinking individual; Councilmember Taylor is entitled to
her opinion, but he believes the reappointment would place the best person for the job. He said
Brojek has had some of the more innovative ideas of anyone who has served on the board; having
served as a liaison to the APHA board for several years. Mayor Anderson said he has always
appreciated the ideas that Brojek has. He has always had the city’s best interest in mind.

Councilmember Taylor asked if the Council is not trying to bring new ideas? Mayor Anderson said
they are when the opportunity presents itself, but in relation to Brojek, he has done a fine job. He
is bringing new ideas. Councilmember Taylor said she is not implying that anyone is doing a poor
job. She is saying council has been making plans, regarding the city, to go in a new direction than
where we have been heading. Mayor Anderson said in particular, we focused the discussions on
the P&Z Board. Councilmember Taylor said they were considering all committees. Mayor Anderson
said that was the subject at hand (at the time).

Councilmember McGuire said in her opinion, it is not just necessarily a “new” person but someone
who has qualifications; one who has demonstrated an ability to do the job well. They were
discussing P&Z issues. The concern was for the attitude; how members of the public were feeling
when coming before the P&Z Board. Additionally, it was qualifications. It is not necessarily a great
idea to put a new person on the board for the sake of doing it. Councilmember Taylor said she
thinks new people interested in serving on the board have great ideas; bringing new innovation to
the city. There is no way to know unless they are given a chance. She believed if someone has
served on the board for 12-years, then it is time to give someone else a chance.

Councilmember Taylor said with reappointments continuing, interested applicants will perceive
that the council is not interested in bringing new ideas to the table. They are more interested in
keeping the existing structure. Councilmember McGuire said the community is welcome to attend
meetings. She encouraged members of the community to do so. Councilmember McGuire said if
they have someone who is qualified and willing to serve, then that is the direction we should go.

Page 5 of 21



10.

Mayor Anderson said there is a vacant position open; no matter what, someone new will be
appointed during this meeting. There is a term expiration upcoming in February 2023. In 2024,
there will be 3 positions; meaning plenty of opportunities.

MOTION, made by Councilmember McGuire, seconded by Councilmember Mercure, to approve
agenda item “D-9,” to reappoint Chet Brojek to the APHA Board.

AYE: McGuire, Mercure, Barnard, Anderson
NAY: Taylor
Motion Passed: 4-1

Council to vet eight (8) applicants requesting to be appointed to the Avon Park Housing Authority-

City Clerk, Chrissy Hardman

The City Clerk said Florine Anderson Wells and Annie Johnson (APHA board applicants) could not
attend. She said she is happy to answer questions? City Manager Schrader said it was brought to
his attention that there are some applicants who also marked the Southside CRA on their
application besides the APHA board. There is one alternate position open, on the Southside CRA;
the council may want to fill it tonight. Mayor Anderson said if it is not on the subject, his
preference is to do it at the January 23rd meeting.

Councilmember McGuire recommended applicant Carmelo Pineiro; his references included Penny
Pieratt, APHA Executive Director. According to the references, Pineiro has worked for many years
with the APHA. He has the basis and understanding of the organizational structure, having
attended all the meetings. One reference stated he brings new ideas to the table for saving money
and efficiency. The references speak to his strong leadership skills, describing him as honest,
hardworking, and knowledgeable about the inner workings of the APHA. Councilmember McGuire
felt he would be a good fit for the position.

MOTION, made by Councilmember McGuire, seconded by Deputy Mayor Barnard, to appoint
Carmelo Pineiro to the APHA board.

Councilmember Taylor asked if she will ever have an opportunity to discuss an item before there is
a motion? Mayor Anderson said she can ask any question; however, a motion was made. If there is
no second, then the motion will die for lack of a second. Councilmember Taylor said we have all
the applicants sitting in the audience; however, Councilmember McGuire recommends one
applicant and moves to approve. She asked if that was how this works? Mayor Anderson said the
councilmember made a motion. Councilmember Taylor may make a motion; however, she chose
not to. Councilmember Taylor said they did not give her an opportunity to make a
recommendation, unlike Councilmember McGuire. Mayor Anderson asked for her
recommendation, to which she said everyone who submitted an application. Everyone should be
considered. Mayor Anderson asked if that is because they listed her as a reference on each
application? Councilmember Taylor said she is not a reference on all the applications but three.

Councilmember Taylor recommended Lisa Pough. Pough lived in the Housing Authority as a child.
She has an insight into what it is like living there under the APHA regulations. Councilmember
Taylor believes Pough can make great decisions for low-income individuals who use the Housing-

Page 6 of 21



Authority as a stepping stone towards home ownership. Councilmember Taylor also recommended
Thelma Ann Foster, who lived in the Housing Authority. Foster professionally had to use her
supervisory skills. Both individuals are honest. They know the people and the APHA rules. Many
individuals who applied are as highly recommended as Pineiro.

Deputy Mayor Barnard said if someone applies for a board, his preference is to appoint someone
who is active in the position, for example, attending meetings regularly. It is difficult for him to
support someone who does not show up to any meetings of any kind, then suddenly, they decide
there is an opening and apply. It tells him what kind of experience they have. Unless you read the
newspaper and its limited information, you do not know what is going on within the city. Pineiro
has worked at the APHA and attended meetings regularly. He seconded the motion for this reason.
Pineiro has the experience and knowledge. There are a lot of other applicants of whom he knows
their names. He agrees they are good people who may do a good job. It is a tough decision, but
someone must be chosen. Pineiro has proven he wants to serve. Deputy Mayor Barnard said none
of the other applicants have attended meetings.

Mayor Anderson said it has been a long time since there have been 8-applicants for one position
on any board. We are heading in the right direction, which is a positive thing. He expressed his
gratitude for there being so many applicants willing to put their name in for a position.
Councilmember Taylor said she met with City Manager Schrader about how these applicants did
not just apply for the APHA board, but the agenda reflects only the APHA position. Mayor
Anderson said City Manager Schrader reported that is not the only position applied for.
Councilmember Taylor said the agenda is misleading because it does not provide for the
individuals who selected the Police Pension Board, the CRA Advisory Board, and the APHA Board.
The agenda shows 8-applicants applying for 1 position. Councilmember Taylor said the mayor does
not want to address the other positions because of the way the agenda was written. She wanted
to bring it to his attention.

Mayor Anderson said she did not listen to the previous conversation; the City Manager reported
their interest in other boards. It was his decision to address the CRA Advisory board at the next
meeting. If there are additional boards listed, then it will be discussed at the next meeting, too.
With that said, the council must adhere to what they wrote on the agenda because an audience
member would not have known they are considering the CRA Advisory board. How is it right for
them to select applicants for a different board not advertised for? They would not have come and
spoken. Councilmember Taylor said she met with the City Manager to see if he can change it.
Councilmember Mercure said to be fair, the council received the agenda packets on Thursday
(January 5th). There would have been an opportunity to have the agenda revised before the
meeting. Mayor Anderson said it is a non-issue, no one is being put out and everyone has an equal
chance.

Councilmember Taylor asked if Pineiro was present? Pineiro said | am. Councilmember Taylor said
that is the reason we wanted the applicants to attend. The council said they would not allow
applicants to be appointed without coming before them. Deputy Mayor Barnard thanked everyone
who submitted an application. He said he reviewed the references and considered when an
application was submitted. Pineiro submitted his application first. He is sure the other applicants
are qualified, but someone must be chosen.

Page 7 of 21



Carmelo Pineiro of 6403 Foster Road, Sebring, introduced himself. Councilmember Taylor noted he
is a Sebring resident; then asked if he was more interested in what happens in Avon Park than
someone who lives here? Pineiro said he believes he has the same feelings as anyone who lives in
Avon Park. He has worked here for the past 9-years before retirement and has grown fond of the
city. Councilmember Taylor asked why he has not applied for the Housing Authority in Sebring?
Pineiro said they do not have one. Councilmember Taylor disagreed, saying he did not check, he
was only interested in Avon Park. Pineiro said he checked. Sebring has different management
companies that run the Housing Authority, serving section-8 clients. Councilmember Taylor asked
if he was retired, has he attended meetings, and if he lives in a Housing Authority? Pineiro said yes,
he is retired, attends meetings; he does not live in a Housing Authority.

Councilmember Taylor asked what motivated him to serve on the board; considering he does not
live in the city or a Housing Authority? Pineiro said he worked for the Housing Authority for over 8
years. He knows the residents that live there and his goal is to serve the public without malice or
prejudice. Mayor Anderson thanked him for attending and submitting his application. City
Manager Schrader informed the council that Pieratt told the Clerk there are actually two vacancies.
Besides the passing of a board member, there already existed a vacancy. Mayor Anderson asked
how many board members are there in total? The City Clerk answered 7.

AYE: McGuire, Mercure, Barnard, Anderson
NAY: Taylor
Motion Passed: 4-1

Mayor Anderson asked Councilmember Taylor who she would recommend for the second
vacancy? Councilmember Taylor said the council requires applicants come before them. Are we
not inviting them to the podium to talk about themselves, then what is the purpose of having them
come before the council? They should at least hear what the applicants have to say. Mayor
Anderson said it sounds like she is more interested in arguing than moving forward. He repeated
his request for a recommendation. Councilmember Taylor recommended every applicant who put
in for the position. Mayor Anderson asked of the applicants remaining, would any wish to come up
to the podium.

Padrika Boone Sheppard of 305 Earnest E. Sims Street, introduced herself. Mayor Anderson asked
why she would like to serve on the board? Sheppard said she wishes to serve because her
grandmother lived in the Housing Authority. She spent many weekends there. Her grandmother
after several years moved to Delaney Heights. There are a lot of things she learned in the
community, not just from her grandmother. Coming home for college, her grandmother would
give her a list of people who needed help, for example, running errands, dinner, picking up
packages. Anything they needed she would do. Her goal is to continue serving. Councilmember
Taylor asked how long she lived in the area? Sheppard said 61-years. She left and always returned.
Councilmember Taylor asked if she believed a person who lives in the community can better serve
it, compared to someone who lives outside? Sheppard said yes.

Councilmember McGuire asked Sheppard what her primary goal is for the Housing Authority?
Sheppard replied, to brighten it up. Councilmember McGuire requested clarification, to which
Sheppard said she wants to brighten up the area, for example, landscaping. Especially Delaney
Heights, where the elderly are. Mayor Anderson asked if she is familiar with the different housing
offered through the Housing Authority; the different level of subsidies, i.e., section-8, no subsidy-

Page 8 of 21



and everything in between. Sheppard said yes. She was one of the first recipients of section-8
when the program was first brought to Avon Park.

Lisa Pough of 705 W. State Street, said she was born and raised in Avon Park. She is employed by
the Polk County school board, working with special needs children from the ages of 18-22. Pough
said she was raised in the Housing Authority. After graduating, she worked for RCMA; collaborating
with Alice Owens, former APHA executive director. Together, they helped a lot of low-income
families. She learned about the process. Alice always encouraged her to serve on the APHA
because she enjoys helping others. Pough said she has always tried to help people to become self-
sufficient and believes her service will be a way for her to give back to the community.

Mayor Anderson asked of the different housing offered by the city; what does she think is the most
helpful to citizens, for example, the partial subsidy, or section-8? Pough said section-8 is
acceptable; however, she believes the partial subsidy is better. Mayor Anderson asked if that is
because of the regulations, to which she said yes. In her conversation with Alice, she knows it
comes from the Government and is aware you cannot just change regulations on a local level.
However, we can eat away at it until it is balanced and organized within the program. She does not
intend to change things but to bring new ideas. Mayor Anderson asked if there is anything she
would change on the Housing Authority? Pough said not really because she does not know it
inside-out; only what we hear. She does not make a judgement based on this. Pough said she
wants to be in it so she can judge the situation for herself, to help in any way she can.

Mayor Anderson asked if she has experience with development, for example, developing
properties or real estate? Pough said not too much; she is a property owner. She has always had
an interest; however, never pursued it. Mayor Anderson explained his question; development is a
large part of what the Housing Authority does. Looking at different properties in the city and
surrounding areas, considering whether they can develop this into a Housing Authority property.
Pough said she has always thought about it because she has brought it up to Councilmember
Taylor and Gerald Snell (CRA Advisory Chair). She always asked about properties and wondered
why such properties have not been used for this purpose. Mayor Anderson asked how long she has
lived in the city, to which Pough said she was born and raised here.

Thelma Foster of 409 E. Canfield Street said she lived in the Housing Authority when she was
young. From the age of 6 to graduation. Foster received her Bachelor of Arts degree in elementary
education. The Housing Authority was okay. She has always told people to not consider the
Housing Authority as a home but a starting point. It was never meant for anyone to stay. After
living there, Foster could purchase her home. Foster applied for the APHA and the P&Z Board.
When she lived in the Housing Authority, she attended a class to receive her seal to serve as an
executive director for the APHA. Foster also served on the resident’s council; they established a
laundromat business. Her goal was to assist residents in getting their confidence to know that
living in the Housing Authority does not mean you are less worthy. The Housing Authority is a
platform where she can help change it for the better, improving programs.

Mayor Anderson recommended Pough. He was impressed with what she had to say and her
attitude towards development. Councilmember Mercure agreed, adding she like her
outspokenness and the clarity in the way she spoke with the council. Deputy Mayor Barnard
enjoyed each presentation, saying each applicant did a wonderful job. He spoke of his father, who
lived in low-income housing because of health issues and loss of employment. Deputy Mayor-

Page 9 of 21



Barnard said he understands what that means; sometimes circumstances in life leads to a need for
services like the APHA. He has concern for all who use the APHA as a starting point.
Councilmember Taylor referenced the term expiration in February and asked will the remaining
applications be acceptable for the position in February? The City Clerk said yes.

MOTION, made by Mayor Anderson, seconded by Deputy Mayor Barnard, to appoint Lisa Pough to
the APHA board.

AYE: McGuire, Mercure, Taylor, Barnard, Anderson
NAY:
Motion Passed: 5-0

11. Council to vet applicant Donna Parks for the Avon Park Police Pension Board- City Clerk, Chrissy
Hardman

The City Clerk summarized the council’s request to meet with Donna Parks prior to her
appointment to the Police Pension Board (December 2022). Parks was not in attendance.
Councilmember Taylor said Thelma Foster applied for the Police Pension Board. The City Clerk said
Foster listed the P&Z Board; there were no applicants for the Police Pension Board.
Councilmember Mercure asked how to proceed? Mayor Anderson said the council can either
approve the appointment or wait later. Councilmember Taylor said it was not approved last time
because Parks had only lived in the city for 2-months. The council knew nothing about the
candidate. We made a request for the candidate to come before them; a request that makes sense
to her, especially for a board like the Police Pension Board. The City Clerk said Parks has been an
Avon Park resident for a year.

Councilmember McGuire said Parks’ references are strong. She agrees it would have been nice for
Parks to be in attendance but did not want to pass up someone who has references like Parks.
Mayor Anderson recommended postponing the appointment until the next meeting. At least, by
then, we will have time to call references and vet them accordingly. The City Clerk said she has
received no applications for any of the Pension boards. Mayor Anderson asked if this is the first
one in quite some time, to which she said yes. Mayor Anderson said they would like enough time
to invite Parks back to the January 23rd meeting.

MOTION, made by Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Mercure, to postpone agenda
item “D-11,” indefinitely.

AYE: Mercure, Taylor, Barnard, Anderson
NAY: McGuire
Motion Passed: 4-1

E. STAFF UPDATES/ADMINISTRATION

12. 2022 Code Enforcement Numbers - Code Enforcement Supervisor, Randy LaBelle

Code Enforcement Supervisor LaBelle provided a report on the 2022 Code Enforcement totals
based on items of importance, including “self-initiated actions and cases.” We provided the report
to the council in their agenda packets.

Page 10 of 21



Deputy Mayor Barnard asked regarding “Snipe Signs,” if they were related to the election? LaBelle
said yes; of the 1,423 signs listed in his report, there were less than 200. Deputy Mayor Barnard
commended LaBelle and his team for their great work. He said they are respectful and well-
trained.

F. ATTORNEY UPDATES:

G. COUNCIL DISCUSSION/UPDATES:

13. Vacant City Property 101 W. Main Street (Former- Wylde Building)- Mayor Anderson

Mayor Anderson said he had made a request for the council to consider ideas for what they would
like to see done where the Wylde Building used to be. Community members have expressed their
dislike for the area being open and bare. The goal is not to create an elaborate park. As City
Manager mentioned the idea is to put out an RFP (request for proposal) to any investors wanting
to build on the parcel; noting that the prior council had also suggested this idea. Mayor Anderson
said the goal is to have a new building there. An RFP needs to be put together, and the council
needs to consider what we can do to fill the space. He asked City Attorney Buhr’s advice.

City Attorney Buhr agreed and noted the last time he worked with the City Manager to put
together an RFP. City Manager Schrader said he already has the purchasing agent (Andy Mogle)
working on it, and we will provide a draft to City Attorney Buhr. Mayor Anderson asked if it is
something they can take a vote on at the next meeting, or thereafter? City Attorney Buhr saw no
reason they could not. They need to consider what they want to do with it. Mayor Anderson asked
if staff can provide an outline at the January 23rd meeting as far as options. City Manager Schrader
said yes. Mayor Anderson said the goal is for a multi-story building, with businesses on the first
floor; and businesses or living spaces upstairs. City Attorney Buhr said they will need to consider
the zoning and building characteristics of the area; or anything, it may be rezoned as. There are
quite a few options. Mayor Anderson said the idea is to bring more people and foot traffic
downtown.

Mayor Anderson said staff has planted grass in the area and irrigation is available to support
landscaping. In the past, suggestions were made to place park benches in the area. He was unsure
if they should wait for the lane repurposing survey to be concluded prior to deciding. Deputy
Mayor Barnard was not opposed to park benches; however, his recommendation is to sell the
property to have another business there. There are a lot of things we can do with the area, such as
lights, tables, or a checker table. It may be nice and fun for a while; however, if someone is
interested in buying the property, then why not just wait a couple months to see what happens.
Mayor Anderson thought it would be unlikely that someone will purchase the property in a couple
of months, but it could happen. Councilmember Mercure said if it is advertised and marketed right,
you never know who could come along.

Mayor Anderson asked if Deputy Mayor Barnard is suggesting the property be left as is?
Councilmember Mercure asked if it is possible to clean the area up to make it presentable?
Something that is not cost prohibitive. Mayor Anderson gave the example of landscaping such as
trees or shrubs. Councilmember Mercure said if someone wants the property, they would have to
knock it down. We do not want to spend a lot of money. Mayor Anderson asked for her-

Page 11 of 21



recommendation? Councilmember McGuire recommended a hedgerow along the back of the
property, so the industrial zone behind it would be less visible. We could add a couple of benches
to make it cozier, to which Deputy Mayor Barnard agreed.

Councilmember Mercure noted the side of the adjacent building is awful and needs to be painted.
Mayor Anderson said he spoke with the property owner several times; encouraging him to apply
for a CRA Fagade grant. The owner is not receptive to the idea. He asked if anyone would like to
approach him? He is a Spanish speaker with English as his second language; therefore, it would be
better if someone spoke Spanish.

Mayor Anderson asked if there were suggestions from staff, to which City Manager Schrader said
none, other than he liked Councilmember McGuire’s recommendation. He disagrees with putting a
lot of money into it because someone may send a proposal to put up a business or residential
building. Mayor Anderson asked City Attorney Buhr, since the issue is one of slum and blight; can
the CRA contribute funds? City Attorney Buhr said his recollection for government buildings is,
other than funds for government demolitions, he does not see property improvement as a part of
the CRA plan. He said there may be an argument with regard to improving the surrounding bricks-
and-mortar properties. Generally, the money is to be spent on bricks-and-mortar improvements,
rather than aesthetic ground improvements.

Mayor Anderson noted the city tore the building down; he asked if we could argue that it is
remediation to bring the property up to the standards where it once was? City Attorney Buhr said
the argument would be that generally, we need to improve it to make the surrounding buildings look
better; as a result, people will want to do business with them. Mayor Anderson said as of now, they
are considering a hedge row with mulch below it. He asked do they want to consider a private
company to do the work or is it something staff can do? City Manager Schrader said staff can look at
getting it done; if not, the city can get a local company to help without going out to bid. Mayor
Anderson said is the intention to bring it before the CRA Board? He asked can the City Manager get
the package together for the next CRA Advisory Board meeting? City Manager Schrader said if we
can do it quickly, as that will be January 12th.

H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:

14. Regular Updates from the City Manager.

City Manager Schrader provided an update on the environmental study at the airport, related to
the lawnmower race track. He said we have been working for the past few months on getting
vendors to see what it would cost and if we must go out to bid. The quotes received include one at
$32,000 to do 9-boring samples in the ground. One company told us that you do not bore into the
ground if unsure what is there, since it may create a worse problem. One quote is asking for almost
$6,500 to perform drilling; another, $4,200 to perform multiple bore samples. The company who
does not recommend boring, is requesting $3,500 for a phase one assessment. There would be no
drilling; it would include a review of historical information, maps, aerial photos, reports, regulatory
records, site visits, and a geologist report.

City Manager Schrader said when meeting with outside counsel (David Bannard), our consultant
(Lowell Clary), and City Attorney Buhr; Lowell brought it up several times how the FAA said not to
do anything out of the ordinary at the site, for example, changes to the master plan-

Page 12 of 21



environmental. City Manager Schrader said it led him to think about whether we are going down
the wrong path with this because the city is close to summitting the AIPP application and lease to
the FAA. City Attorney Buhr agreed with him that we should not be doing this right now based on
what the FAA said. City Manager Schrader said he also contacted Lowell Clary who agreed, saying
he fully agreed we should leave this alone right now. Clary said if something happens out there, it
mostly likely will set us and the AIPP process back for several months. City Attorney Buhr said such
a setback will make $32,000 look tiny comparatively.

Mayor Anderson summarized the discussions which led to the decision to halt the lawn mower
racing operation because of potential contamination. With this new information, the council is in
the predicament of deciding how to help the lawnmower race and not mess up the AIPP process.
City Attorney Buhr asked if there is another location they can use? He feels bad; however, the city
had no choice once the smell was reported.

Councilmember Taylor said Nasgrass was not required to have an inspection when they could
originally use the area. Now, 25-years later, it is required. She understands the city’s position with
liability; however, how can they be held responsible for something that the city did not investigate
initially. Mayor Anderson said they are not being held responsible. Councilmember Taylor said we
are stopping them from racing. We are holding them back from doing what they want to do
because we did not do what we were supposed to do as a city. It is not the current council, but the
ones prior. She said it does not seem fair to them. City Attorney Buhr said if we discovered a
minefield on the property, it would be the same scenario. It is not their fault, nor the city’s, but we
cannot allow people to go in until we investigate it. City Attorney Buhr said we do not want to
investigate now at the advice of our experts. Councilmember Mercure said the city did not pay for
anyone to go out there. City Attorney Buhr said he is referring to the airport experts, our outside
counsel.

Deputy Mayor Barnard said he has attended a lawnmower race in another town; it is a family-
friendly small-town event that is fun to do. It is fantastic to have, and he wants to see it return;
whether at that location or another. He wants to make sure the city and its council do not forget.
With that said, safety is the number one priority. We cannot move forward if there is any chance of
something being unsafe or someone getting hurt. The city has an obligation to make sure it is a
safe piece of property; otherwise, we can find another property. We cannot take any risks that
may hinder the AIPP grant process. He expressed his apologies for those who have used it in the
past and for those who attend. His goal is safety, the success of the AIPP grant; not to get rid of the
races. We have to put it on hold. After we conclude the AIPP grant, then he would like to move
forward by considering options to make it safe or find an alternative location.

Councilmember McGuire thought there were lawnmower races (unaffiliated with Nasgrass) hosted
at the High School track. Mayor Anderson said there were a couple events, but it was not a regular
occurrence. Councilmember McGuire asked Nasgrass members in the audience to speak on
whether they have looked into another location or what the exact requirements are for the track.
If we cannot do if it at the airport, then the city may consider other options.

Councilmember Mercure agreed with Deputy Mayor Barnard; it is a lot of fun and she hates to see
it go away. The event is a livelihood for many people, bringing in revenue to the city. With that
said, she would not be able to sleep if someone got killed. She asked who reported the smell?
Councilmember McGuire said a Nasgrass employee. City Manager Schrader said he was first told-

Page 13 of 21



by a Nasgrass employee (Wes). Later, when he told Rick Reed about what Wes said, Reed said
when he was at the airport mowing, in that same area, he could smell something. Mayor Anderson
asked what the smell was, to which City Manager Schrader said he was told (by Wes) methane;
however, he did not believe you can smell methane. Councilmember Mercure asked if they were
qualified to identify the smell? Could it just be a swamp smell? City Attorney Buhr said methane or
hydrogen sulfide; it could be something innocent, but we do not know at this point.

Kristine Smith of 4409 Hedge Drive, said at the first meeting the City Manager had reported it was
a gentleman mowing at the site. They have been there 25-years; the smell did not become
apparent until they started clearing the airport. It comes and goes; there were never complaints.
Mayor Anderson asked her to clarify what she meant by “clearing,” to which she said when they
cleared the area up of the trees and foliage up to the fence. She asked why the smell is only
affecting Nasgrass; it is not concentrated in a single area. She asked how the council can single
them out for contamination? Councilmember Mercure questioned what time of year was the area
cleared and was it during the rainy season? Smith said yes during the summer. Mayor Anderson
informed the audience to not comment; public participation needs to be on record.
Councilmember Mercure said the person mowing may have smelled it, but she questions their
qualifications to identify what the smell is.

Mayor Anderson said no one will know for sure until we document it with the proper procedures.
Smith agreed, adding it is not confined to just the racetrack. If that is the case, then the entire
landfill area should be tested. Discussion continued regarding the landfill area. Smith said J.T. Clark
(FAM) said there is available space at the softball field. They have four months left in the season; if
they cannot finish, they can no longer be in business. She asked why they cannot be allowed to
finish the 4-months while the council considers what to do. Councilmember Mercure asked how
many houses are along the path leading to the racetrack when turning off of State Road 64 (SR-
64)? Smith said under ten. Councilmember Mercure asked if they were vacant. Smith said no;
however, they were told those properties were to be a part of the airport. Councilmember
Mercure said allowing them to finish the 4-months is a fair request.

Michael Graves of 801 LaGrande Boulevard, Sebring, said the track has been there for 25-years.
There have never been explosions or illness; he asked how they can think there is methane? He
spoke of the children who race at the track and the effect not being able to take part will have on
them. Mayor Anderson said on the other side, if a kid died out there, then the question would be
how did we allow children to go out there. The council is trying to figure out if there is a way to
mitigate the risk so that the city is not liable.

Jack Halby of Sebring said he is a seasonal resident who loves to watch the races. Halby said there
is another reason the city is not allowing the races, and we need to let them know why. Mayor
Anderson said the mentioned smell is the reason. Halby said there are meters that identify the
cause of such a smell. He asked if the city has done that? Mayor Anderson said it requires a
certified company to do so. That is what they were trying to find. Halby did not understand the
council’s reasoning.

Bill Veal of 5894 Dove Avenue, asked if FAM or the city consulted with the state before disturbing
ground on the other side of the fence (known to be a former landfill)? City Manager Schrader said
the FAA requires there to be a cleared area from the fence line. When FAM was moving mounds at
the location, he told them to stop immediately. Mayor Anderson asked what is the process to-

Page 14 of 21



continue to clear land at the site; would an environmental study be required? City Manager
Schrader said the landfill, probably going back to World War II, extends past it but there are no
buildings. In the future, when FAM gets the lease, they are going to perform studies prior to
expansion. City Manager Schrader said 25-years ago, the Department of Environmental Protection
(DEP) was not what they are today. 25-years ago, they just started moving old cars out there, but
right now the city does not know what is under the ground. He is not against Nasgrass, but he is for
the city. They have heard City Attorney Buhr and his recommendation; the decision is up to
council. If the AIPP goes through, hopefully by March, then FAM will be the one to say who goes
out there; not the city. Even if permitted, it would only be for a short time. He does not
recommend allowing them to continue without knowing what is underground.

Mayor Anderson asked theoretically, were FAM to get the AIPP and someone gets hurt the next
day; is the city still liable? City Attorney Buhr said they will be responsible at that point as the
leaseholders. They are aware of the circumstances out there. Veal asked if they can access the
property to collect their personal effects? City Attorney Buhr said he sees no reason they cannot;
City Manager Schrader had no problem with it. Mayor Anderson asked according to law, what is
the difference between someone going out there temporarily versus going out to a race? City
Attorney Buhr said legally they have property on the site; the city cannot tell them they may not
have their property back. They go onto the property with knowledge of the assumption of risk.

City Attorney Buhr said should the council decide to allow the races to continue; he would say, it
would be a real problem unless they have a waiver for everyone on the property. Even then, how
can you collect a waiver for a minor? Councilmember Mercure asked if a parent/guardian signs the
waiver on their behalf? City Attorney Buhr said there are only certain things that people can sign “a
child’s life away for.” Councilmember Mercure did not believe a parent will purposely put their
child at risk. City Attorney Buhr said the “knowingly” part is the issue; if the city does not know
what the smell is, how can the signer?

Mayor Anderson said prior to knowledge of the smell; if a child was killed while racing, what are
the ramifications? City Attorney Buhr said we made them get insurance and sign an
indemnification of the city. Mayor Anderson asked if we cannot do the same thing about this
situation? City Attorney Buhr said he is discussing a much larger liability issue; requiring a lot of
insurance. Mayor Anderson asked what the insurance liability is for Nasgrass, to which Smith said
S5 million. Councilmember McGuire asked if there is liability coverage available for unknown
liability, such as an all-inclusive coverage? City Attorney Buhr said if they are leasing the property,
they indemnify the city, and provide a sufficient amount of insurance; he would say they need to at
least get waivers. For children, sometimes the waiver is enforceable; other times not. He knows
waivers for children hold up for educational activities, for example, field trips. Not so much for jet-
skis. He feels the situation is closer to the jet-ski scenario than a field trip.

Mayor Anderson asked if the city is liable were a plane to crash, causing an explosion from
methane gas? City Attorney Buhr said there are many circumstances we can come up with for
much more than what $6 million will cover. Is it totally covered; no. Mayor Anderson wanted the
context of the airport activities to which, City Attorney Buhr said it is significant.

Wes Pybur, Nasgrass President, presented a waiver saying Smith had provided a copy of the
waiver. He asked it to be considered, easing the council’s mind. Their policy is for children and
adults; they have $5 million in coverage. Pybur spoke to the understanding of parents with-

Page 15 of 21



children in motorsports. He asked that Nasgrass be allowed to resume racing. Mayor Anderson
asked for Nasgrass’ policy on children attending their events. Pybur said anyone under the age of
18 must sign a waiver. All people who go in the “pits,” must sign a waiver. Mayor Anderson asked if
a guardian must accompany minors. Pybur said a parent or guardian must accompany them.
Mayor Anderson referenced the risk of motor sports; he asked how the mitigation of risk is
handled, is it typically on private property? Pybur said it was on private property.

Discussion continued regarding the history of lawn mower racing and the city’s involvement in
keeping the sport alive. Pybur said the city is the last to be involved with lawn mower racing.
Mayor Anderson assumed we are the last because the others have moved to private properties, to
which Pybur agreed. Mayor Anderson noted that in the long-term, the airport is going to be used
for airport activities. It is not a forever situation. They are going to want to seek a private property
to continue. He encouraged they do so; regardless of what happens at the airport. FAM’s goal is to
develop the airport. Pybur said when they went month-to-month, they started pursuing other
opportunities. They do not want to break ties with the city. Mayor Anderson asked if this does not
go through, can they find a private property to operate? Pybur said yes.

Councilmember McGuire asked why they could not use the softball fields? Pybur said it was
offered and there was no follow up. City Manager Schrader said he told them J.T. Clark did not
answer for the city. He answers to the City Manager; he could not just tell them where they can
move to. Mayor Anderson asked if he looked into that property? City Manager Schrader said no;
he would not look into anything until the AIPP grant process is done. Mayor Anderson asked if they
tie the softball fields into the AIPP? City Manager Schrader said the softball fields (Durrah Martin)
and the water plant will not be part of it. Councilmember Mercure asked how large of a property
do they need? Pybur answered 7 to 10 acres.

Mayor Anderson said the insurance option is the only one that makes sense. Even then, it is legally
questionable. City Attorney Buhr said it is a risk. City Manager Schrader asked when Pybur was
working with City Attorney Buhr; did he have an issue with insurance? Pybur said, no it was not
insurance, it was the environmental assessment. Since there was not a pre-assessment; Nasgrass
did not feel they should be responsible for a post-assessment. Councilmember Mercure asked how
long their break would be after the 4-months? Pybur said they shut down in May, the next
scheduled event is in September. Councilmember Mercure recommended allowing Nasgrass to
complete the remaining 4-months. Councilmember McGuire considered whether there is another
property available that is safer; she asked if there was anything preventing them from using the
softball fields? City Manager Schrader said he was unsure of the exact area mentioned by J.T. Clark
but it is a wooded area. We would have to clear it. He does not believe there is an alternative to
move it anywhere else, on airport property. Councilmember McGuire asked Pybur if the private
property they have considered was in Avon Park? Pybur said it is close; 15 to 20 minutes away.
Councilmember McGuire asked if it was ready, to which Pybur said it was clear, flat land. It is not
ready, but it is a useable space.

Mayor Anderson said private property is the way to go. The threshold of safety that a city requires
will be far more than privately owned land. City Attorney Buhr asked if the FAA would consider
Nasgrass operations as the status quo, if allowed to continue with proper insurance and
indemnification? City Manager Schrader said as long as we are not performing environmental
studies, he believed we would be alright. However, he agreed going the direction of private
property is the best way to go.

Page 16 of 21



City Manager Schrader said this is not meant to be in a bad way; but all good things come to an
end. What the city is doing with FAM with the AIPP; if half of their (FAM’s) vision comes true, then
it will be great for the city. The city needs the AIPP and lease to be approved by the FAA, to bring in
jobs, commercial buildings, and hotels, etc. Mayor Anderson referenced changes to the insurance;
asking, is there a set of changes that need to happen? City Manager Schrader said they sent one a
few months back; they can send the one they have now and he will get it to City Attorney Buhr for
review. City Attorney Buhr said likely, it will need to include pollution, which is the expensive part.
His concern for liability is not the coverage for crashes. The concern is about things related to
pollution.

Councilmember Mercure asked how often are their races? Pybur said once-a-month, they would
be out there 4-more times. City Manager Schrader noted sometimes they are out there longer
than that. Pybur agreed, clarifying most of them live 3 to 5 hours away. People come in on a Friday
and stay overnight. They race on Saturday, host classes for children during the day, then shut down
everything at 9:00 p.m. People leave on Sunday morning. City Manager Schrader said there are RV
hookups out there.

Mayor Anderson noted there is a lot of support on the council; the hurdles they will need to cross
include the insurance with pollution coverage and indemnification for the city. He suggested they
reach out to City Attorney Buhr for questions they may have. There is nothing more the city can do
until we handle this. Once they take care of these items, we can bring it up at the January 23rd
meeting. He asked when is their next race? Pybur said the second Saturday of the month.

Earl Bosley of 1103 Citrine Drive said if the ground is not safe for Nasgrass, then it should not be
safe for airplanes to land or to live along the road. For which those parties are not being penalized.
He spoke of the improvements made to the ground with no problems when digging. Bosley
answered questions from Mayor Anderson regarding other locations where they race.

Discussion continued regarding the community reaching out to members of the council, the
potential of a catastrophic event, and the importance of taking legal advice. Councilmember
Mercure asked if they can take care of their insurance by the next meeting; will the council be able
to give them authorization to proceed? Mayor Anderson said that is the intent. Councilmember
McGuire asked Pybur if only children were signing waivers? Pybur said no; anyone in the pit area
(where the race mowers are) including children and adults. Councilmember McGuire asked if we
must extend waivers to anyone in attendance, not only the pit area? City Attorney Buhr said in a
perfect world, yes. It should be part of the entry; a “knowing waiver,” explaining the potential for
noxious gas. Councilmember McGuire asked would it be acceptable for the waiver to include every
potential scenario of liability we can think of; then have every attendee sign? City Attorney Buhr
said yes. Mayor Anderson said the gate attendant will have to get people to sign waivers.

City Attorney Buhr said Nasgrass needs to review their insurance policy to see if they have a
pollution exclusion clause. If there is one, then they will need to seek alternative coverage.

Barry Foster of Highlands Radio Group spoke of the history of Nasgrass and his disagreement with
the idea that an unidentified smell would shut the operation down. He said if the city is going to
shut them down, then the airport should also be closed. Foster was glad to see there was council
support. He also recalled personal stories of attendees he encountered in his time writing about
the races.

Page 17 of 21



Garrett Pard of Lake Placid, spoke of his experience at the Highlands County landfill and their lack
of warning signs or a waiver. He talked about his family racing at the track for over 5-years and his
racing equipment. Pard expressed his disagreement with closing the operation down for a smell.
Mayor Anderson spoke of how landfills harness methane; he asked City Attorney Buhr how do
landfills circumvent the issues with that? Councilmember McGuire suggested it is the
acknowledgement that someone is going into a landfill; she thought they may include it in the
waiver. Mayor Anderson thought it would be the easiest route. Councilmember Mercure noted
people shoot their guns at the Avon Park landfill. Mayor Anderson said that is done on private
property.

City Manager Schrader said a qualified engineer oversees the County landfill that Pard spoke of.
They direct people on where to place materials so they are not co-mingled, and put a certain
coverage down over the trash. It is not the same as this one from World War Il. Pard said there is
an RC Club flying model planes there, to which Mayor Anderson said they sign waivers. Pard asked
if the city stopped maintaining the airport since we shut them down? City Manager Schrader said
we (FAM) is mowing the airport; adding that we are talking about a small area of the airport.
Discussion continued regarding Nasgrass compared to FAM, the focus on a formerly used landfill,
the city maintaining the airport outside of the Nasgrass area, and the risk of liability.

City Manager Schrader said we will need to have a month-to-month lease since the Nasgrass lease
expired. Councilmember McGuire stressed the importance of Nasgrass reviewing their coverage
for the pollution exclusion clause. Mayor Anderson said the compromise is to get the pollution
exclusion issue worked out to move forward; it is his recommendation. Councilmember McGuire
said she wants them to expand the waiver and check for the pollution exclusion; here, she would
feel good about the situation. Mayor Anderson said the waiver would have to be approved by the
City Attorney before the January 23rd meeting. The waiver and lease will need to be ready by that
time. Councilmember McGuire said at the last discussion, Nasgrass did not agree to the post-
environmental testing. City Attorney Buhr understood Nasgrass’ position, speaking of the
circumstances where the city requires it, for example, FAM leasing the airport. There is so much
going on where Nasgrass is located, it would be meaningless to get an assessment done.
Councilmember McGuire asked if that requirement can be removed? City Attorney Buhr said yes.

Councilmember Taylor asked why it has to go back to the council? If the insurance is acceptable,
and the City Attorney agrees it meets the standards; why can we not give approval now for the 4-
months? City Attorney Buhr said he will never say it meets the standards. He will tell you what the
level of risk is. Based on the requested documentation, it will be reduced. We are trying to get
some middle ground to give Nasgrass some help. Councilmember Taylor said we are waiting for
them to get with their insurance company to make sure it meets the requirement that this council
is requesting. If the council says it meets the requirement today, then why does it have to come
back before the council? It would save them time. The City Manager noted the lease needs to be
approved by Council. The City Manager asked Nasgrass (Wes) to get the information to him and he
would forward it to the city attorney. The City Attorney requested contact information for their
insurance company.

City Manager Schrader continued his report, saying the Florida Recreation Development Assistance
grant (FRDAP) for Durrah Martin was denied. We received a letter stating the city does not have
site control. City Attorney Buhr, himself, and Corbett (Guardian CRM) had a virtual meeting with-

Page 18 of 21



the attorney representing FDEP. During which, she said they had requested further
documentation, which was not submitted by the city. Corbett said the city received the request
but did not get it back to them. Upon investigation, City Manager Schrader found that was not
true. A sketch was completed by Sherco surveying for just the property in question, (ball fields) of
which was sent to Corbett. When City Manager Schrader followed up with Corbett, Corbett told
him that he sent it to the FDEP. When following up with the attorney from FDEP, she said it a made
it her office, but she did not actually receive it: however, after looking at it, more was required
than just the sketch. City Manager said the city will apply for the FRDAP grant next year. The FDEP
attorney suggested City Attorney Buhr review the legal descriptions/site control requirements.

City Manager Schrader said the attorney at FDEP said that also because the airport was turned
over to the city after WWII there are other things we may have to look at. He noted that we have
yet to hear back about the FRDAP application for the MLK Sports Complex.

Councilmember Mercure said there is a large pothole at the end of N. Lake Avenue at the end of
SR-17 (on the Lake Avenue side); in front of La Preferida Market. She asked who needs to be
contacted to get it fixed? City Manager Schrader said in that area it could be the city or the county,
and he will have public works look into it.

Councilmember Mercure said there is also a homeless issue. City Manager Schrader said yes, we
have been dealing with it. There seems to be more homeless because of the economy. Some of the
homeless are not your typical homeless people. He said on his way home recently he stopped and
spoke to two individuals sitting in the gazebo (Band Stand). Their rent increased so much they
were evicted after not being able to pay it for two-months. It was not drug, alcohol, or mental
health related. One gentleman was 75-years old with some health problems and his son was in his
50s. Their funds ran out after staying in a local hotel in the city for $280 a week. They spent the
prior night at CVS, in the rain, scared they would be robbed. After which they went to the gazebo
for some cover and light. Their possessions were in 4 small suitcases. As it was supposed to be cold
that night, he contacted Sergeant Kim Gunn, with the Sheriff’s Office, about maybe getting them to
the mission (Sebring). Sergeant Gunn said she would send a deputy and get them to the mission.

City Manager Schrader said the homeless we are seeing is not entirely what we typically see. Code
Enforcement Supervisor LaBelle has been dealing with them putting up tents and living in them. A
building owner, from West Palm Beach, drove up today to give the homeless (living in a tent) at
her property a week to leave or she would call the Sheriff’s Office. He received a call from a former
mayor about another homeless individual; LaBelle also took care of that by getting the owner to
tell them to leave or the Sheriff’s office would be called.

City Manager Schrader said there are homeless but he does not know what people actually expect
us to do. We are doing what we can; as we cannot have them arrested for just being homeless.
Every homeless situation is unique and the city (code enforcement) is dealing with it. Personally,
he believes we will deal with more if the economy continues the way it is going. Rents are
extremely high for places he would not want to live in. City Manager Schrader said he believes
when LaBelle calls law enforcement, they too are doing the best they can. There are a lot of
homeless on Main Street charging their phones. He told the staff to shut down the electrical
outlets once we put away the Christmas decorations; so, they will not be hanging out there. We
have received calls from the Museum about homeless using the power outlet to charge their
phone; the power was cut there too.

Page 19 of 21



City Manager Schrader said there are homeless living in their cars. He asked what the council
wants staff to do; we cannot have them arrested and LaBelle can do little code enforcement wise.
We do work with landowners when they set up tents/trespassing. There seems to be more
homeless, not just here, but everywhere.

Councilmember Mercure asked if there is someone who can help and educate them on where they
can go. For example, missions and services like Hands for the Homeless? City Manager Schrader
agreed Hands for the Homeless deals with people every day; more and more each day. We have
the mission. The Sheriff’s office does not want to put them in jail, so they are offering he
help/resources they can. He noted that Sergeant Gunn was a great help the other night when the
called her. We see it and we are taking care of it the best we can. LaBelle is on top of it, receiving
calls every day. He said we cannot round them up and take them somewhere else, and we do not
want to have them arrested. Most of the time, there is no reason to do so. Sitting in the gazebo is
not an arrestable offense. City Manager Schrader said he understands her point; if people are
throwing trash around, LaBelle deals with that too. We see it and we are doing the best we can in
collaboration with the Sheriff’s office.

Mayor Anderson said legally, there is only so much we can do on public property. Private property
owners have a full right to kick people off their property. He said the best thing to do is to
eliminate the opportunity; for example, overgrown properties, outlets, free internet access, etc.
These opportunities give people a chance to dwell on a property. He agrees that if the economy
takes a turn, we will see more of it.

Discussion continued regarding the impact of COVID and societal changes, leading to an increase in
the homeless population. City Manager Schrader said no good deed goes unpunished; Hands for
the Homeless are seeing more people staying near their location because they are feeding them.
He spoke of his experience with the homeless in Palm Beach County and the varying reasons
people are homeless; for example, mental health and substance abuse. He said the homeless we
are seeing here do not all fit into that category. The other day, the Sheriff’s office Baker Acted an
individual who came to City Hall. A person spoke of harming himself and the City Clerk asked for
his help to deal with him. He was likely off of his medication. Code Enforcement, the city, and the
Sheriff’s office are doing the best we can. It is probably county-wide. Besides what the mayor said
about opportunity, abandoned/vacant properties where the owner is not here or a business is
closed, are other scenarios. Owners who not live in County do not know the homeless are there
until LaBelle contacts them.

LaBelle recalled his own experience with the homeless in the alleyway between the old phone
company off of Jim Rogers over to North Lake Avenue, behind US 27. The property owner is on the
magistrate list for a hearing. Our authority is to cite the property owner. He can do nothing else.
We are doing everything we can legally.

Mayor Anderson asked if there is anything the city can do, as far as public property. City Attorney
Buhr said the city is very limited. He would have to research the issue because it had never come
up before. He agreed to look into it. City Attorney Buhr said he is not hopeful. Discussion

continued about how to eliminate homeless issues on your own property. Mayor Anderson
proposed reaching out to food vendors who give away free food to educate them. We can also ask-

Page 20 of 21



to hand out a pamphlet with every bag of food to provide legal guidelines; there are only so many
things we can do on public property.

Councilmember Taylor said no one suggested having the city dig into resources to see what we can
do to help them. Mayor Anderson asked if she meant to provide housing; adding, if we do so, they
will want more. Councilmember Taylor said the APHA does provide housing for the homeless. The
homeless are people. Mayor Anderson said you get more of what you subsidize. Handing out
rewards for bad behavior leads to more. Councilmember Taylor said some homeless have fallen on
bad luck; we cannot help them all and some do not want help. She said as a city, she believes we
can dig deeper into our resources to see if we can assist those who want help; taking some off the
streets. Mayor Anderson said he has no problem giving direction as to resources, privately;
however, city funded initiatives to provide housing he would not support.

Deputy Mayor Barnard said there is a church service center on Main Street. It is there to support
people who need help; taking care of people in Avon Park, whether they are homeless or having
problems paying bills. There is also feeding of the homeless at the Union Congregational Church.
So long as people are receiving help like that, they are going to stick around. He does not see how
the city can decide on who to help. It must be a private organization.

Councilmember Taylor said she is not saying the city needs to help; maybe the city can dig deeper
into resources to find other organizations that can. There has to be someone willing to help. Mayor
Anderson said it sounds like she gave herself a job. He suggested she look into these organizations
to submit to the City Manager.

ADJOURN:

Meeting adjourned at 8:56 p.m.

ATTEST: CITY OF AVON PARK:

Christian Hardman, City Clerk James Garrett Anderson, Mayor

Page 21 of 21



Agenda Item Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023

Subject: Public Hearing, Second Reading: Ordinance 01-2023, Vacating
and Closing a Platted Right-of-Way, Twin Lakes Project

Item No.: D-5
Placed on Agenda by: City Attorney, Jerry Buhr
Staff Review: Yes

Attorney Review: Yes

Recommended Motion(s): Approve Second Reading

Documentation:

e Draft Ordinance No. 01-2023, with Exhibits
e Corporate Resolution, Boston Mining Company

Background:

This is an unused Platted Right-of-Way, on the Boston Mining Company’s
property, that needs vacating. Council approved the first reading during the
January 9" Regular City Council meeting.



ORDINANCE 01-2023

AN ORDINANCE VACATING AND CLOSING A PLATTED
ROADWAY NEVER USED BY THE PUBLIC LOCATED IN
THE CITY OF AVON PARK, FLORIDA, AT THE REQUEST OF
ADJACENT OWNER BOSTON MINING COMPANY;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, an application for street or alley closing has been submitted to the City by an
adjacent property owner to close and vacate a portion of the city right of way (“ROW?), such
ROW to be abandoned being more specifically described as and shown in Exhibit “A”
(“Abandoned ROW?”); and,

WHEREAS, the ROW to be vacated was platted for City public use but never used by the public,
and runs over and across property owned by Boston Mining Company (“Developer”) which
Developer requested the street closing, and with the public having been duly notified by
publication and signs posted of the proposed closing Ordinance second reading and public hearing
for passage of this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the ROW closing having been considered by City Staff along with letters of nonuse
by local utilities including City Public Works Department, City Fire Department as well as the
Sheriff’s Office and private utilities doing business in the City, according to the Developer’s
assurances all having received a description of the ROW and have ascertained that the closing will
not affect any utility access, or routing to emergencies by City vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk duly noticed the public hearing at which the application and this
Ordinance have been approved as well as in the newspaper as required by statute, and the City has
also posted the appropriate signs on the ROW notifying area residents of the proposal; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the City Commissioners, it is prudent or reasonable and in the
public interest that the ROW be vacated as provided in this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, after due notice having been given, two meetings were held at which affected
property owners and interested parties were permitted to be heard.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the Avon Park, Florida, as follows:
SECTION 1. That the right of way identified on Exhibit “A” is hereby vacated and closed.

SECTION 2. Developer has assumed the obligation of verifying non-use by private utilities. The
letters of “no objection” are on file with the City Clerk.

SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage. The Clerk shall provide a copy
of this Ordinance to the County and 911 dispatch.

Page 1 of 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Avon Park, Florida, has duly adopted this Ordinance and
caused it to be executed by the officers below as follows:

On the 9™ day of January, 2023 the Ordinance was read for the first time, and the vote was:
Yes No  Abstain  Absent

Councilperson/Mayor Anderson O

Councilperson /Deputy Mayor Barnard [J

Councilperson McGuire O

Councilperson Mercure O

Councilperson Taylor O

OO im0
B3 B 82
OooOooOoog

On the 23" day of January, 2023 the Ordinance was read for the second time at a public hearing,
and the vote was:

Yes No  Abstain  Absent

Councilperson/Mayor Anderson O O O a
Councilperson /Deputy Mayor Barnard 0O O O O
Councilperson McGuire 0 0 O 0
Councilperson Mercure O a 0 0
Councilperson Taylor 0 O O a

(Seal)

ATTEST: CITY OF AVON PARK, FLORIDA

By: By:

Christian Hardman, City Clerk Garrett Anderson, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Gerald Buhr, City Attorney

Page 2 of 6



EXHIBIT "A"
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH OF RIGHT OF WAY
PROPERTY TO BE VACATED

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY!!!
SKETCH T0 ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRRTION,
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
PARCEL A - RIGHT OF WAY
APORTION OF A 8 FOOT ROAD EASEMENT RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 134, PAGE 98, LYING IN PORTION OF EAST /2 OF THE S W 14 OF SECTION 27,
TOWNSHIP 33 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ALL IN HIGHLANDS COUNTY. FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULAR DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS

COMMENCE AT THE N.W. CORNER OF THE SE 1/4 OF SW 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27, THENCE SOUTH 00°28'43" EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 1/2OF THE SW.

114 OF SAID SECTION 27, A DISTANCE OF 684.95 FEET FOR POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 43°58 06" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 65.73 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 00°26'43"
EAST, ADISTANCE OF 302 FEET MORE OR LESS TO A POINT LYING ON THE EDGE OF WATER OF LAKE LELIA, THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG SAID EDGE OF WATERA
DISTANCE OF 59 FEET MORE OR LESS TQ A POINT, THENCE NORTH 00°26'43" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 291 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTANING
13,644 SQUARE FEET OR 0 31 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

SURVEYING INC.
ATHIBL L) $200F5
WIRUANFURALAD  HRG LOTA 127
ACE W2 3k g 103 W w1

L 0 AT 1
WBSTE CUPMAESALTHI N

CANT

TS LIC

SCALE 115

{ REVISIONS i
SERIRATE PARCELS OM 121522 BAw,

¥
7
Y
'}
0

SHEET 1 OF 2
SEE SHEET 20F 2 FOR SKETCH
 —— s

Page 3 of 6



EXHIBIT "A"
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH OF RIGHT OF WAY

//

/

3
2
/
/
/
/
/
/
,/
b
I’WWW
WD eRel
TANMSIN LS
/
A
/

"y

VL
/ iﬁcg
’ rgag (A

4/'

F

|
|
[
|
|
i
i
I
i

(DT 1 08 800K 873, 145 #9)

GRAPHIC SCALE
THE EAST 120F THE © e n oW
SW. 14 OF SECTION 213328 555;5
| ( N FEET )

! inch = 150 ft

' Sl RADMAY

=
F-=asT Love or tve wesT 12 oF TUE S.W. 1/4 OF SECTION 27-33-28

400'

B

- A
'/’.' //'
DR B0 T3 I T T e
i cah tenc o s s . e et L abeibncinas'od s ' aie o 'I’L

PROPERTY TO BE VACATED
! 1N T A s o= — = EEEE
Jl | i - T /o UVE OF THE NE. 1/4 OF THE SV, 1/ OF SECTION 27-03-28 \ !
VARBLE ROAD IS ] N o vt (ot 4 2 2 "H'mrm'r'—
R E\ yal — 40’ RGHT OF YAY & POVER LINVE EASDINT FIR 03, 41, PAGE 430 Po1 0 ok ¥, Pt 40 [')
‘ p | 7
TR R R o s N o reh e et AN M, T E I
VACANT RGHT OF TAY i
N.V. CORNZR TRANSMSSON TOMER
oF THE SE. 1/4 \ (e l
07 5.1, 1/4 OF Ra— — o - _— -
SECTION 27-23-26 / WCTA PAE #/ DXT COE S '
a1

S ————y— |

WEST saanTAnen Bt or -.-.\

s

Page 4 of 6

SHEET 2 OF2
SEE SHEET | CF 3 FORLEGAL DESCRIPTION
s




EXHIBIT “A” (CONTINUED)
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH OF RIGHT OF WAY
PROPERTY TO BE VACATED

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY!!!

SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION,

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL C - RIGHT OF WAY

A PORTICN OF LOT 16, BLOCK 2 OR § E. 114 OF GOVERNMENT LOT §, AND A PORTION OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE S.W. 1/4 OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 33 SOUTH, RANGE 28
EAST, AL LYING IN HIGHLANDS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS

COMMENCE AT THE N.E. CORNER OF THE SW. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27, THENCE SOUTH 89°48'04° WEST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE S.W. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27,A
DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET TO A POINT LYING ON THE WEST RICHT OF WA LINE OF SOUTH LAKE BOULEVARD AND BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH
0°00°00" EAST, ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 20 00 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 85°45'04" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1,117 FEET, MORE OR LESS TO A POINT LYING
ON THE EDGE OF WATER OF LAKE ANOKA, THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID EDGE OF WATER, A DISTANCE OF 20 FEET, MORE OR LESS TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH
89'4204" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 479 FEET, MORE OR LESS TO THE & W. CORNER OF SAID LOT 16, BLOCK 2 OF GOVERNMENT LOT §;, THENCE NORTH 00°26'45" WEST, ALONG
THE COMMON LINE BETWEEN LOTS 15 & 16, BLOCK 2 OF GOVERNMENT LOT 5, A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET, THENCE NORTH £3°49'04" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 631 38 FEET TO
A POINT LYING ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SOUTH LAKE BOULEVARD, THENCE SOUTH 00°2428" EAST, ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 2000
FEET, THENCE NORTH 89'48'04" EAST, ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 10 00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BECINNING. CONTAINING 35,004 SQUARE FEET OR

080 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

GERMAINE
SURVEYING INC.

PRSI LS AT
WNONMANEINLAN, BV A S
P W 141 3
PO I MY
T, S AT T

e

(V]
o [ e AL 1
| DA VA 07 B
TASK | 9 PARCILC jokcanay
[ SURVEYORS CERTWCATION.

NI RN e (A LKA PP ASE S

(et e

L L L P e )

BT PITNO 0N A BN T A v 18

WERE v i NN WA el
057 FIA03 A UVRERRTEES

vy

~ e
PP
-
@t b i
e

SHEET | T2

SEC SHEET 2 OF 2 FOR SKE™CH

Page 5 of 6



EXHIBIT "A" (CONTINUED)
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH OF RIGHT OF WAY

PROPERTY TO BE VACATED
H |
[N '
e L |
o8 i LOT 168K 208 g;
B | 4 OF GOV, LOT 5 W S
GRAPHIC SCALE seee 111k . it
3.0 fili¥ LYING N SEC. 273328 . ;g 2
150 ¢ B 5082 5.5 TRANSCRIPT BOOK, PAGE 13 § l&i
" it
- B8 1ifi1 g |
( ¥ FEET ) 852 il 9§'r35
| inch = 150 ft £V |
|
| |
|
|
: mg.g-l »e A! 8¢
i RIGH? OF IA:\ )fq UMWE K0T
o NSV 0001 | O iy T T oy

S B et g mnerarra I - —-—
AL 17 sorort man /| 1|
NORTH LIVE OF THE 5. 1/4 OF SECTION 27-33-28 5 I
12 o & | h_ o or
THE BAST 1/20F THE me oy s o) | g,
SW. 1/4 OF SECTION 27.33.28 R 7-8-3 i
'
%3
LAKE ANOKA fisi |
»
M=
hixz)i
ijgeli
nsals
] dl‘ i
e
5
00 5 WA A O et I
| SHEET 2 OF 2 |
| ! SEE SHEET | OF 2 FOR LEGAL DESCRIZTION |

Page 6 of 6



This instrument prepared by:
Melissa Barlaug

KARLSON LAW GROUP, P.A.
301 Dal Hall Blvd.

Lake Placid, FL 33852
Our File No. 462-21
$18.50 Rec
CORPORATE RESOLUTION
of
BOSTON MINING COMPANY

1, JAMES MARK WHEELER, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected and acting President of BOSTON
MINING COMPANY, a Florida corporation, that I am the keeper of the corporate records and the seal of the
corporation.

THAT, BOSTON MINING COMPANY, a Florida corporation, is duly organized and existing and is currently
in good standing under the laws of the State of Florida and has been in good standing since the respective date of
inception August 26, 1968.

THAT, the subject property does not constitute all or substantially all of the assets of BOSTON MINING
COMPANY, a Florida corporation.

By unanimous consent of all the Directors, the following was duly adopted, same has not in any way been
modified or rescinded, but is in full force and effect; said Directors of the corporation have duly ratified and
affirmed the same in the form hereinafter set forth:

RESOLVED, that JAMES MARK WHEELER, President of BOSTON MINING COMPANY, a Florida
corporation, is hereby directed to sign and execute any and all documentation that may be required for the sale or
transfer of the following described real property, including but not limited to a Warranty Deed, any necessary
easements, and any other documentation required to effect such sale:

LOT 16, BLOCK 2, OR THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF GOVERNMENT LOT 5, LESS
RIGHT-OF-WAY, IN SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 33 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, AVON
PARK, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN
TRANSCRIPT BOOK, PAGE 13, PUBLIC RECORDS OF HIGHLANDS COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

AND

THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 33
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, AND A PORTION OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 33 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, IN HIGHLANDS COUNTY,
FLORIDA, SAID PORTION OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

STARTING AT A POINT 20 FEET EAST OF THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 27;
THENCE SOUTH 1200 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN EAST
938.80 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 243 FEET TO THE NORTH SHORE LINE OF
LAKE LELIA; THENCE RUN ALONG THE NORTH SHORE OF LAKE LELIA IN A
WESTERLY DIRECTION TO WHERE A LINE, RUNNING SOUTH FROM.THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, IF PRODUCED, WOULD STRIKE THE NORTH SHORE LINE OF
LAKE LELIA; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG SAID LINE TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, LESS AND EXCEPT A 40 FOOT STRIP DEEDED BY H.L. MEAD,
SOMETIMES KNOWN AS HARRY L MEAD, TO THE CITY OF AVON PARK AND
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY, DATED FEBRUARY 20, 1928, RECORDED
IN DEED BOOK 41, PAGE 430, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF HIGHLANDS
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND LESS AND EXCEPT THOSE THREE PARCELS DEEDED
TO ARNOLD A. GOBOURNE AND WILLIE MAY GOBOURNE, HIS WIFE, BY
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 205, PAGE 270 AND
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 393, PAGE 857, OF



THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF HIGHLANDS COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BY WARRANTY
DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 562, PAGE 779, PUBLIC
RECORDS OF HIGHLANDS COUNTY, FLORIDA.

LESS & EXCEPT:

WESTERLY EIGHT (8) FEET OF THE EASTERLY TWENTY (20) FEET OF THE
VACATED FORTY (40) FOOT PLATTED RIGHT OF WAY (NOT CONSTRUCTED) AS
SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF PRICE AND GORHAM SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF
SECTION 27, RECORDED IN TRANSCRIPT BOOK, PAGE 25 OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF HIGHLANDS COUNTY, FLORIDA LYING BETWEEN GOVERNMENT
LOTS 10 AND 11 OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 33 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST,
HIGHLANDS COUNTY, FLORIDA. SAID VACATED RIGHT OF WAY IS ALSO
DESCRIBED AS THE EASTERLY TWENTY (20) FEET OF LOT 6, BLOCK 3, AND THE
WESTERLY TWENTY (20) FEET OF LOT 7, BLOCK 3, BEING A PORTION OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF GOVERNMENT LOT ELEVEN (11) AND THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF GOVERNMENT LOT TEN (10), SECTION 27,
TOWNSHIP 33 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, HIGHLANDS COUNTY, FLORIDA.

There being no further business before the meeting, on motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting
adjourned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name as President and affixed the corporate seal of
the corporation thisZ. & day of Mo 2

BOSTON MINING COMPANY, a Florida corporation

By: ﬁ W
{XMES MARK WHEELER
Its: President

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF HIGHLANDS

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged beforc me by means of [X] physical presence or [_] online
notarization, this ijday of DELEMBER ™ 2022 by JAMES MARK WHEELER, President of BOSTON
MINING COMPANY, a Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation, who DQis personally known to me or
[_] has produced a driver's license as identification.

[Notary Seal]

NOTARY PUBL
Printed Name: FAuc Anthony Koukos
My Commission Expires: _JAM 23, 2023

> d’\ Notary Public State of Fiorida

F 4 Paul Antheny Koukos
:' ,* s My Commission GG 287762
S o Expires 01/23/2023

Prove vey




Agenda Iltem Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023

Subject: Draft Lease between City of Avon Park and Nasgrass, Inc.
Item No.: D-6

Placed on Agenda by: City Manager, Mark Schrader

Staff Review:

Attorney Review: Yes
Recommended Motion(s):

Documentation:

e City Attorney is working on the DRAFT lease and it will be sent to
councilmembers when completed

Background:



Agenda Iltem Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023
Subject: Council to Vet four (4) applicants requesting to be appointed to
the CRA Advisory Board, Southside Alternate Position

Item No.: D-7
Placed on Agenda by: City Clerk, Christian Hardman
Staff Review: Yes

Attorney Review:
Recommended Motion(s):

Documentation:

e Current CRA Advisory Board Members
e Applications and Reference Checks for Four applicants

Background:
Applicant Name Date
e Florine Anderson Wells 12/12/2022
e Annie Johnson 12/12/2022
e Thelma Ann Foster 12/30/2022
e Jerdine Collins Williams 12/30/2022

Applicant Padrika Sheppard is no longer interested in the position. Thelma
Ann Foster selected the P&Z Board; however, she would also be interested
in this position.



COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“CRA”)

The CRA Board (comprised of City Council members) meets on the second Thursday of each month.

CRA ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Board Chairman, Gerald Snell: Term: October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2025
(Southside CRA)
Board Member, Rick Hayes: Term: October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2025
(Airport CRA)
Board Member, Bill Jarrett: Term: October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2025
(Main Street CRA)
Board Member, Dana Sevigny: Term: October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2025
(Main Street CRA)
Board Member, Kelvin Sheppard: Term: October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2025

(Southside CRA)

Board Member, Laura Wade:  Term: October 2022 to September 30, 2025

(Southside CRA)

Avon Park City Liaison: Deputy Mayor Barnard
Meetings
Meetings are on the second Thursday of each month, unless approved otherwise.
Vacancies
1-Board Member for the Airport District

1-Alternate Board Member for each district



VOLUNTEER APPLICATION ey 43 399 ot 03
FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Avon Park. Your completion of this
application is necessary so that the members of the City Council can thoroughly review each

application as part of their consideration for your appointment.

Please choose the Board(s) and/or Commissions(s) for which you wish to apply:

D Main Street CRA Advisory Board [a/s_;uthside CRA Adyvisory Board
D Airport CRA Advisory Board Housing Authority
D_ Pension Boards™ Planning & Zoning Board™
) Police _D_ Fire

ALL OF THE ABOVE ARE SUBJECT TO THE “SUNSHINE LAW”

*MEMBERS OF THE BOARD(S) AND/OR COMMISSIONS TH AN
ASTERISK ARE REQUIRED TO FILE FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES. ”

1. PERSONAL:

Name: FA":"Y‘ S dersom - e M5 E-Mail: an derson @ highlandsbgc.ony

Address: /A5 ﬁ/aﬁkr Ave Auveon FarlC, Fla 83825
Telephone: 4(.3-§73-487/ Business #:

Are you a registered voter in Avon Park? ms D_ No

How long have you been a resident of Avon Park? 2 OL/Zb

Are you currently serving on a City Board? D Yes _E_/I:Io

If yes, when and which Board?

2. REFERENCES: Please list 3 references (Business and/or Personal) include Name,
Address, and Phone Number.

Ublly Baocel] §63- 43-/737
flocen Fobuto §¢3-38) - <oxp
gt Ty (319) 6559-35 55~




3. Education:

High School: /4 oy IM Date Graduated: ﬁ“‘“ V B
College: y ate Graduated: __ (2 e2.08°2.7 O H

Other: Degree:

4. Work Experience: 4( ¢ M/“'L’“"d—

5. Interests/Activities:

6. Community Involvement: /.{4—4— B Hahm er=9—

7. Why do you desire to serve on this and/or these Board(s)?

8. A resume or separate sheet with additional information may be included.

I understand the responsibilities associated with being a Board member, and 1 have adequate time
to serve if appointed.

%M%@ : /fé :

Si ?(ature Date

/‘Wm Zo, 2022
7
NOTE: If you have any questions concerning the duties and responsibilities of any of the above
Boards and/or Commissions, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 452-4400.

Please return this form to the City Manager’s Office, 110 E. Main Street. Avon Park. FL. 338235
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.



Florine Anderson-Wells B

155 Hatcher Ave, Avon Park, 33825 | 863-873-4871 | avonpark217@yahoo.com

Skills & Abilities

MANAGEMENT
+ Overseeing daily functions and programming to 10-15 employees

LEADERSHIP
- Senior Branch Director - 2 Sites - Boys & Girls Club of Highlands County - 15 years

Experience

SENIOR BRANCH DIRECTOR | BOYS & GIRLS CLULB OF HIGHLANDS COUNTY| 01/2008-
CURRENT

- Establish Unit programs, activities and services that prepare youth for success. Program curriculum
must follow Outcomes Measurement Indicators & programing goals. ¢ Create a Club environment that
facilitates the five key elements for youth development.  Assist in development of Outcome
Measurements and Indicators for Club programming, « Ensure a healthy and safe environment,
ensuring facilities, equipment and supplies are maintained. « Plan, develop, implement and evaluate
Unit programs, service and activities to ensure they meet stated objectives and member needs and
interests. « Monthly reports must reflect all activities, attendance and participation, review weekly
program assistant reports, to be included in weekly report to Executive Director.  Plan and implement
member retention and recruitment activities. « Manage grant requirements & member participation to
satisfy grant requirements. « Research and develop curriculum with pre- and post- outcome
assessments for Club programs that encourage member interest & participation that met Outcome
Indicators. « Manage Unit financial resources assisting in the development of annual budgets. Control
expenditures against budget. « Learn & utilize BGCA programming. « Responsible for Club site
remaining clean, neat, organized and in good repair. « Maintain an up-to-date inventory of Club
equipment quarterly. « Maintain accurate records of volunteers and supplies monthly. « Submit all
reports on a timely basis using correct and complete data. « Maintain accurate record of staff payroll
timesheets. Ensuring all documents are signed and accurate. «Conduct regular part-time staff meetings.
* Develop partnerships with parents, community leaders and organizations. « Manage staff program
delivery. « Develop and maintain public relations to increase the visibility of programs, services and
activities within the Club and the community. « Review and respond to emails, voicemail and other
forms of communication within twenty-four (24) hours. « Communicate any potential issue or concern
regularly with administrative staff regarding personnel, parent, peer, partners or Club members. «
Implement strategic goals of the organization.

YOUTH CARE WORKER | HIGHLANDS YOUTH ACADEMY (G4S) |2010-2012
Provide safety and security to the facility through proper youth supervision. - Ensures that the
facility behavior management system is enforced in a consistent and fair manner. - Participate
as a member of the facility treatment team, assisting youth with meeting performance goals. -



Completes observation checks and provides role model behavior to assist youth with problem
solving and competency development. - Make every attempt to minimize adverse affects of
confinement by supporting the juvenile's physical, emotional, educational, and social
development in an atmosphere which is as nonthreatening as possible.

PARENT COORDINATOR | HOPEWELL ACADEMY | 2004-2008

Plans, teaches, organizes, coordinates, directs and evaluates various parenting programs and
activities - Establishes and maintains weekly parental support groups and/or classes using approved
curriculum and ensuring program fidelity - Conducts personal/home parenting education visits using
approved curriculum and ensuring program fidelity - Develops, promotes, and maintains community
development, public relations and service activities - Recruits, trains, supports and supervises
volunteers and program participants

Community Involvement: I'm very involve with Highlands Community Sheriff’s
Department Cops Adapt Unit, Community Pros, Southside Community Resource, Ridge SDA
Church, NAACP, Castle on Delaney Restaurant, Church of Christ, First United Methodist Church,
South Florida State College Adult Education and Panther Youth Partners Outreach, Tri-County

Page 2



REFERENCE CHECK APHA
Florine Anderson-Wells

Reference 1: Wally Randall

Randall knows Anderson from when he used to serve on the AP City Council. He also worked
with her on fireworks (1987-2010). He described Anderson as thoughtful; a person who reads
through material to make informed decisions. Randall was not aware of her serving on other
boards; however, he feels she can make objective decisions. He said she will invest her time on
the APHA board and that the city could do a lot worse.

Reference 2: Kevin Roberts., County Commissioner

Commissioner Roberts spoke of Wells’ work as executive director for the Boys and Girls Club.
Wells has a passion for helping children; teaching them respect and providing support.
Commissioner Roberts described Wells as having a passion and love for doing things the right
way. He said she would be a powerful advocate for the underprivileged; she wants to shape the
lives of the people in her community to make the world a better place. Her history with decision
making has been nothing but positive. Clear through her work with children and their parents.
Wells is strict, principled, and would be a good voice for what is right. Commissioner Roberts
explained Wells is sweet and would bring diversity to the APHA.

Reference 3: Berniece Taylor, Councilmember

Berniece went to school with Wells, saying she highly recommends her for the APHA Board. As
mentioned, she was the Director of the Boys and Girls Club; she is a good person. Her
experience with children, parents, and coworkers provides her with great insight and expertise
on interacting with many people. Berniece said Wells is trustworthy and does a lot for the
community. Wells genuinely wants the best for Avon Park.



VOLUNTEER APPLICATION
G 12747 P 1134

FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Avon Park. Your completion of this
application is necessary so that the members of the City Council can thoroughly review each
application as part of their consideration for your appointment.
Please choose the Board(s) and/or Commissions(s) for which you wishto apply:
D Main Street CRA Advisory Board Southside CRA Advisory Board

[:l Airport CRA Advisory Board Housing Authority
_D_ Pensi n,Boargls* ‘
Police _D_ Fire

ALL OF THE ABOVE ARE SUBJECT TO THE “SUNSHINE LAW”

Planning & Zening Board™

*MEMBERS . OF THE BOARD(S) AND/OR COMMISSIONS WITH AN
ASTERISK ARE REQUIRED TO FILE FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES. *

L PERSOKW
Name: ’ \ ’R&wgﬂ E-Mail: Qpgae « Eu{_;,gmﬁ? Q tSa,kOO COMme

Address:
TelephoneM\O\‘ 1, A1} Business mjﬂv@ ﬂxgcwol '

Are you a registered voter in Avon Park? _&_ Yes _D_ No

How long have you been a resident of Avon Park? _\ 2\ WS~

_ . J
Are you currently serving on a City Board? __D_ Yes No

If yes, when and which Board?

2. REFERENCES: Please list 3 references (Business and/or Personal) include Name,
Address, and Phone Number.

' A
MW\\ KW‘ /XDP\\ue U.,/@A\\OY' \ﬂﬂ\j.md‘\a\ Or. %B\é’ﬁ’%ﬁg
Relo Wy Shaln Carker M S 913 bz,
_\N\%- Quorg e 45 Bk €. Qins. AP, i3 Hs3




3. Education:

High School: M gs - Date Graduated: S- e \4g |
College: M) [ f. Date Graduated: N (’* :
Other: NIA - Degree: 0(4 N

4. Work Experience:

.;1 i v ‘({,3(‘;4& Cow.cc&’?wuf b&:@uu o:c Ovey ’ZOY“—.

5. Interests/Activities:
"

6. Community Involvement:

¢ Wely Covprmgn i .
éo&gnﬂ,&&" f k"aﬂmmﬂﬁé Wi 40, Churf ,476‘{?‘:%&. Cudret Gop Lo Fa o)
KRC ¢ 2\ 1

7. Why do you desire to serve on this and/or these Board(s)?

Devodd W —h getict pih Vi Yo Commudithn ook,
od Yo aek Anew. wgolweS- WAL By walevs.
= NS WM&.“ \WNee o UWSe W\ Nel o Ve J(WRS\DQMM*‘

8. A resume or separate sheet with additional information may be included.

I understand the responsibilities associated with being a Board member, and I have adequate time
serve if appointed.

E(DQV"— Qﬁ% N, 2072
b Date

NOTE: If you have any questions concerning the duties and responsibilities of any of the above
Boards and/or Commissions, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 452-4400.

1gnature

Please return this form ta the City Manager’s Office, 110 E. Main Street, Avon Park, FL 33825
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.



REFERENCE CHECK APHA

Annie Johnson

Reference 1: Berniece Taylor, Councilmember

Berniece has known Johnson for over 25 years; she worked with Johnson and was her
employee. Johnson is a retired sergeant from Avon Park Correctional. They were also
classmates. She spoke of Johnson’s desire to see the city grow; going in a direction that it has
not been for many years. Berniece stated anyone who can lead employees and supervise over
200 inmates can conduct themselves well on a board in service of the community. Since
Berniece has known Johnson, she has always had an interest in serving on an Avon Park board;
however, she was never made aware of any opportunities. Johnson is a good and trustworthy
person. Berniece said Johnson loves Avon Park and will make sound decisions.

Reference 2: Sheila Carter

Ms. Carter knows Johnson from church. She helps the church for services, including set ups,
food preparation, and tear downs. Carter described Johnson as an efficient person who works
well with others. She said Johnson is a wonderful fit for anything she is involved with. Carter also
described Johnson as a person with a great love for people; always doing what is best for others.
Carter has known Johnson since elementary school. Johnson worked at the prison. Carter
concluded Johnson is very good with people.

Reference 3: Clara Boone

Ms. Boone taught Johnson in school and goes to church with her. Boone stated Johnson is useful
and always helps people in Avon Park. She is intelligent and a great help, because that is what
she does. Boone said Johnson can do anything that needs to be done. Johnson does a lot for the
community. For example, Johnson learned of a home damaged by fire; she helped the residents
fix their home, including painting and cleaning. She charged nothing for the work.



t VOLUNTEER APPLICATION
FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

DEG 3077 o0 31973
Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Avon Park. Your complenon of ﬂ?n s
application is necessary so that the members of the City Council can thoroughly review each
application as part of their consideration for your appointment.

Please choose the Board(s) and/or Commissions(s) for wh:&yyvish to-apply:
D Main Street CRA Advisory Board outhside CRA Advisory Board
D Airport CRA Advisory Board [Qﬂ Housing Authority

_D_ Pe ion Boards
Pohce _D__ Fire

ALL OF THE ABOVE ARE SUBJECT TO THE “SUNSHINE LAW”

Planning & Zoning Board™

*MEMBERS . OF THE BOARD(S) AND/OR CO SSIONS WITH AN
S ' ' D TO FILE FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES. *

1. PERSONAL: - L W
Name: "Eldmﬁ éf/ms ,1// e Jei250kest Yahoo. @&m
Address:

" L
e jon %;«K’ FL. 33325
Telephone: < 7(0.5 0/ 0 Business #;_-
Are you a registered voter in Avon Park? M No

How long have you been a resident of Avon Park?

Are you currently serving on a City Board? D Yes m

If yes, when and which Board?

2. REFERENCES: Please list 3 references (Business and/or Personal) include Name,
Address, and Phone Number.

b, Gray-  SLa. §73- 1)28
Al Ter ‘mcm 713 - 399- 3343

Béquee Todlor 13 /o%? %C%

Rhonds #AM%/ V.3 A5%- L4




' ::::::a 4 W] 7%/’/( 7%}/7 Date Graduated: é/#/ ? 77

College: Date Graduated:

Other: Degree:
4. Work Experience: =
IR shodE Dok (Bund fof o

5. Interests/Activities: ’ .
v W/ eltuty, ravelng

Ot~ LU

ﬂymf 5% /cﬁ//aﬁ
2, 47

6. Community Involvement:

Znwe/ved /n my < hatety, ( "Oinataien fy _Fports

W 2pplialie /

0000%una) wordl u 2 Kibhiy 8 DArdewd Cu 7y,
wa ) /u)vLL[(Cﬂc: S. d ;

7. Why do you desire to serve on this and/or these Board(s)? .

7’&{)074/// //Z(. 74 See. et [5’)1(/.’6{4{6{54@ (/ﬂjw 76 A

Kl poréntnl.
UT e Druds G 775705 72de 7 7270 75 m (v 2K
e 9 E Yt decisdons ,&%t/ﬂ e s /7441 C/d/wfﬁ%rza‘/ .

8. A resume or separate sheet with additional mformancn may be included.

N TE If you have any questions concerning the duties and responsibilities of any of the above
Boards and/or Commissions, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 452-4400.

Please return this form to the City Manager’s Office, 110 E. Main Street, Avon Park, FL 33825
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.



REFERENCE CHECK APHA

Jerdine Collins Williams

Reference 1: Brenda Gray

Brenda described Williams as dependable. In her opinion, Williams would work very well with
the housing authority; having grown up in Avon Park on Carolina Avenue. Williams also owns a
home in Avon Park. Brenda said in closing, Williams is very dependable, reliable, and
trustworthy.

Reference 2: Al Joe Hinson

Hinson spoke of Williams’ work as a nurse. He described her as a pillar of the community; she
would make excellent choices because she cares for the community (having grown up in the
Southside). Hinson said she is the best choice; if the city does not appoint her to the role, it
would be a big mistake.

Reference 3: Berniece Taylor, Councilmember

She is her mother’s neighbor. May have worked for the Sheriff’s her whole life. Good person,
kind hearted. Always talks about the community and expressed an interest in serving. Fun
honest person; she would be honored to do something for the community at her age. Berniece
feels she would be great, very much a mother hen of the community. The kids look at her as a
grandmother or mother. Berniece feels she would do good, and make good sound decisions
about the residents in the community. And she is really interested in doing it.

Reference 4: Rhonda Hunter

Weatherspoon said Ramsey is his sister, who he considers being an honest person. Ramsey
always helps members of the community; going above and beyond. He said Ramsey is a person
who never gets the recognition she deserves.



VOLUNTEER APPLICATION

FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS QEC 30122 P avd

Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Avon Park. Your completion of this
application is necessary so that the members of the City Council can thoroughly review each
application as part of their consideration for your appointment.

Please choose the Board(s) and/or Commissions(s) for \VhE%}F.\ wish to apply:

D Main Street CRA Advisory Board Southside CRA Advisory Board

D Airport CRA Advisory Board Housing Authority
D_ P n Boards™, I/ Planning & Zoning Board™
Police _D_ Fire

ALL OF THE ABOVE ARE SUBJECT TO THE “SUNSHINE LAW”

*MEMBERS OF THE BOARD(S) AND/OR COMMISSIONS WITH AN
ASTERISK ARE REQUIRED TO FILE FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES. *

1. PERSONAL:

Name: [ helina Apn Foster Y
Address: 404 /= Canfield .(Jf/ A' Yon Q‘r(‘é/ _/’;’)... 33825
Telephone: ($9)44 3 - [;f}/ 24 | Business #:
Are you a registered voter in Avon Park? E_ Yes J___]_ No

How long have you been a resident of Avon Park? C [/’f [E N yﬂu, nu ( }1 i

Are you currently serving on a City Board? *D Yes —E— No

If yes, when and which Board?

2. REFERENCES: Please list 3 references (Business and/or Personal) include Name,
Address, and Phone Number.

Zelle Moo e /Jw WIW._Stute Steet AL AL, (LS54
Nﬂrf‘m ﬂ[’Z ‘t” ~00 WL Kirk /(m{ 'I A /7[/ /{"I ﬂ‘f‘l’(‘ﬂ”"
\PEV V‘H\&C/}m Nf“mw» 1082 Lepnon A fTL‘ ' /I/, ] L&ﬂ {52840




3. Education:

High School: &V@p EZ! ['& H zgiz ,S'L:L)oal Date Graduated: SJ’L,( e | “7 75

-

College: ¢ Date Graduated: }7 Dec | Q44

Other:

4. Work Experience:

! J h ” S‘ Ab L ¢ 4 N -
a S - Fid (AL ] Nialr gt VIV THLS relnell ol ! -
A - .
a. Al T DT Lo ¢ handl/z Y2 1287 4A K ot die 5
S . v - s -
T Hylgs Yol 45 -2 sy P S o W X A ;”C"f’{
1

nes Ay
Y T P
obbica B KoceX,

5. Interests/Activities:

) Rt . » ¢ A
’ AR I A ( V] Lty Q) PEATeN 7} L2 T
2 ( . : . d A . "
A - LB & neidw &M Al R / e < Ayl
yadd qud cuadlgpa 2

/

6. Community Involvement:

T have been Inveolyed wencs QaC, ’rv{y;u L1 de
;‘)rcjyﬁfgz o o -

7. Why do you desire to serve on this and/or these Board(s)?

) " ey -
%g\cznuee‘ L gre ngc’fJ ‘10 GeVNe DD a“ R <LX%r
ot Avon Var X dan see 4 vnFYov‘e nen .

8. A resume or separate sheet with additional information may be included.

I understand the responsibilities associated with being a Board member, and 1 have adequate time
to serve if appointed.

NOTE: If you have any questions concerning the duties and responsibilities of any of the above
Boards and/or Commissions, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 452-4400.

Please return this form to the City Manager’s Office, 110 E. Main Street. Avon Park. FL. 33825
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.



REFERENCE CHECK APHA
Thelma Ann Foster

Reference 1: Zella Mae Walker

Walker said Foster will do well on the APHA. She knows Foster from Church; stating she does a
lot of work for the congregation. She is a team player and she would recommend her to the
board.

Reference 2: Martha Mitchell

Mitchell knows Foster from church; Foster has been a member of the church for 12 years. They
also worked together at Avon Park Correctional. Mitchell said Foster can make correct decisions
to the benefit of her community. She said Foster will serve effectively. Foster lived at the APHA
prior to purchasing her home. Her insight will assist the operation. Mitchell said Foster is a
suitable candidate.

Reference 3: Reverend Theolia Williams

Reverend Williams was Foster’s pastor for 14 years; he is retired and is now a part of the
congregation. Foster served on the Church board. Reverend Williams described Foster as a
decent person who would be an asset because of her concern for people. She is a church
steward and treasurer that can make decisions. Foster is sincere in everything she does; she is
characteristic of, “a good, decent church-going woman.” Foster is also a veteran.



Agenda Iltem Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023

Subject: Council to Vet Donna Parks Applicant for the Avon Park Police
Pension Board

Item No.: D-8
Placed on Agenda by: City Clerk, Chrissy Hardman
Staff Review: Yes

Attorney Review:
Recommended Motion(s):

Documentation:

e Email from Brian Robinson, Administrator for the Police Pension
Board

e Volunteer Application, Donna Parks

e Donna Parks References

Background:

There has been a vacancy on the Avon Park Police Pension Board for a
considerable amount of time. Donna Parks’ application was submitted on
December 5th. Donna resides in the city.

During the December 12th and January 9*" Regular City Council meetings,
Council asked that Ms. Parks be present at the next Regular Council
meeting; so, they could vet her for the appointment. Staff has been unable
to speak with Ms. Parks on the phone. Brian Robinson emailed the city clerk
confirming Parks’ attendance at the January 23™ meeting.



Christian Hardman

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Categories:

Brian Robinson <appension@policepension.org>
Tuesday, January 10, 2023 6:04 PM

Christian Hardman

Re: app

Completed

Caution: This email was sent from outside the City of Avon Park's organization.

She advised me that she got your message and would call you and show up for Monday's meeting.

Don't worry about it going forward, we will continue to look for someone.

Thanks

Brian Robinson

Avon Park Police officers

Plan Administrator

On Tue, Jan 10, 2023 at 11:00 AM Christian Hardman <chardman@avonpark.city> wrote:

Hey Brian,

So, Council did not appoint Donna Parks. They said that they want to talk to her. Our next meeting is on January 23,
Mark wants me to talk with Donna but she has not returned my phone calls. Any chance you can get her to call me?

. D
%%l’(r)’/[(lﬂ %/(//)1((/1

City Clerk
(863) 452-4405
110 East Main Street,

Avon Park, FL 33825



VOLUNTEER APPLICATION
FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Avon Park. Your completion of this
epplication is necessary so that the members of the City Council can thoroughly review each
application as part of their consideration for your appointment.

Please choose the Board(s) and/or Commissions(s) for which you wish to apply:

D Main Street CRA Advisory Board _D_ Southside CRA Advisory Board
_D_ Airport CRA Advisory Board D_ Housing Authority
_& Pagsion Boards™ Planning & Zoning Board*
Police D, Fise

ALL OF THE ABOVE ARE SUBJECT TO THE “SUNSHINE LAW”

1. PERSONAL:

Name: onca. Cacte  EMail __donoa.0acks @ wocer edu
address: __LoOD % \ale Givd  Pwon So €\ 23808
Telophone: B\03-245-15774 Business #:
Are you 8 registered voter in Avon Park? E_vu D_ No
How long have you been a resident of Avon Park? \ peer
Are you currently serving on a City Board? _D_ Yes ﬂ No
If yes, when and which Board?

2. REFERENCES: Please list 3 references (Businegss and/or Personal) include Name,

Address, and Phone Number.
Wowsr®
Sodg Sennedt MU Lousiontr (86D M8\ Y9T7
Quew

, .
ooy e 9 Gt *Meus) we-gug
S e s ew*Ee gcdso

3]t P QA= B B ot




3. Education:

HighSchoot: _Pocdes S Wy DuieGrdumes: __\Yls
College: \\Qcoer Date Graduated: __ QOO
Other: Degree:
4. Work Experience:
5. Interests/Activities:

"t 1 Gardtong

6. Community Involvement:
—No\uckeer  Oedee  WOur Assadokion

7. Why do you desire to serve on this and/or these Board(s)?
‘N Y .

8. A resume or separate sheet with additional information may be included

I understand the m‘ron:lhllltlu associated with being 0 Board member, and | have adequate time
to serve if appointed.

TLD'MM WJuay
ignature Date

NOTE: [f you have any questions concerning the duties and responsibilities of any of the above
Boards and/or Commissions, please contact the City Manager's Office at 432-4400.

Please retumn this form to the City Manager's Office, 110 E. Main Street. Avon Park. FL 33823
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.




REFERENCE CHECK POLICE PENSION BOARD

Donna Parks
Reference 1: Sonja Benne

Donna has served on a board as long as Sonja Bennett has known her including, the youth
football league. Parks served on the board with a leadership role and made a significant
difference, including applying for grant funds and building a new field. She Is fantastic with
projects. Parks serves on the Hardee County Fair Board. In Bennett’s words, I” think she’ll do a
good job; she has strong organizational and communication skills,” “she runs with things.” If
given a task, Parks always exceeds what is asked of her (for the better), She’s a researcher and
gets things done.

Reference 2: Tracy Pate

Ms. Pate spoke of Donna Parks as an outstanding person In the community. Pate has served
with Parks on other boards; in Pate’s own words, “no job is too small or big for Donna.” She
gives her all with anything she does; Parks can be a worker or a leader. Donna Parks originally
came from Hardee County. During her time in the community, Parks could get grant funding for
a variety of projects, including the High School Football field and tennis courts. One of Park’s
accomplishments was coordinating on the Hardee County beauty pageant. During her time, she
could get Jeremy Rosado (from the Reality TV Show- The Voice) to perform. Parks was President
of the Hardee Youth board; she also started an organization for youth mentorship; creating
relationship bonds with Law Enforcement and First Responders,

Reference 2: Jo Pace

Jo Pace has worked with Parks for over 15-years, serving on several boards with her. Pace also
worked as an executive assistant with Parks. In Pace's experience, every board who has had
Parks serve has succeeded. The current sheriff of Hardee County worked with Parks on their
campaign. Parks has experience with law enforcement, working closely with them. It is possible
for Parks to read through the jargon, understand it, and use it to convey ideas. Parks Is very
good at understanding jargon. She would be a great asset; Hardee County lost a gem when
Parks moved to Highlands County.



Agenda Item Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023

Subject Draft RFP City Owned Property (101 W. Main Street)
Item No.: D-9

Placed on Agenda by: City Manager, Mark Schrader

Staff Review: Yes

Attorney Review: Yes
Recommended Motion(s):

Documentation:

e DRAFT RFP (Request of Proposal) reference City owned Property at
101 W. Main Street

Background:

Council requested the DRAFT RFP for this meeting; so, they could discuss
and propose changes to it



City of Avon Park

Request for Proposals
for
Sale & Development of City-Owned Property

RFP # 2023-01
CITY OF AVON PARK LEGAL NOTICE

NOTICE: The City of Avon Park hereby gives notice of its intent to seek proposals from
interested parties in response to this Request for Proposals for “RFP # 2023-01 — Sale &
Development of City-Owned Property.” This RFP is for the sale and mixed use-commercial
development of the property at 101 W. Main Street.

To be considered, interested respondents must hand deliver or mail in all requested materials
by Tuesday, February 28, 2023, by 11:00 A.M. (EST). All proposals must be sealed and
addressed to: City of Avon Park, Purchasing Agent (RFP # 2023-01), 110 E. Main Street, Avon
Park, FL 33872. (Emailed or faxed submittals will not be accepted).

ALL SUBMITTALS MUST INCLUDE:

e One (1) original and five (5) copies of the proposal; each marked
accordingly as “original” or “copy.”

e The Response Form (Appendix B) and The Affidavit (Appendix D).

e Follow the Proposal Organization and Submittal Guidelines (Appendix C).

e One (1) Flash drive containing all materials submitted in PDF format.

All proposals shall be publicly opened and recorded on TUESDAY, FEBRUARY
28,2023, at 11:00 A.M. (EST). Late submittals may not be accepted or
considered.

The City of Avon Park reserves the right to accept any response deemed to be in the City’s best
interest or to waive any technicality or irregularity in any response. The City may, at any time,
reject any or all submittals and re-advertise.

For a copy of the RFP, please visit our website, www.avonpark.city/rfps or email
Amogle@avonpark.city.

*All addenda will be posted on the City’s website. It is the responsibility of the respondents to
check back to the website. Failure to do so may result in rejection of a proposal.



City of Avon Park




City of Avon Park

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1: PROJECT SUMMARY..ooccruessssssesseseesssmsesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssassssssseses 4
DEVELOPMENT VISION oo oo oo oo oo eesees e et sseosoessee e s 4
SECTION 2: PROJECT INTRODUCTION. ...osoceveemeememsssssssssessssssessssssssssssssssssassssassessssssssses 4
COMMUNITY OVERVIEW. oo eeeeseeseseesesee s 4
SITE OVERVIEW
GENERAL PROJECT COMMENTS / STANDARD CONDITIONS OF
SECTION 3: PROPOSAL QUESTIONS.......ccceeeeemesacbissstsnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssses 7
SECTION 4: INQUIRIES....oooooo oo oo eeseesmessesssmsssssssboett st cmeenalfsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnss 8
SECTION 5: DEVELOPER’S RESPONSIBILITIES i ccccevcnsinsstissnssssss s s 9
ENTITLEMENTS oo eees e / |
PRE-DEVELOPMENT COSTS....ovoveeereererrmrenesresees
512210 15 S
LEGISLATIVE ACTION
FINANCING..ovoo oo eesers oo
CONSTRUCTION cevveer oo '.
SECTION 6A: PROPOSAL INSTRU TIONS
SECTION 6B: SELECTION PROCESS..... ,
SECTION 7: STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS .
ADDITIONAL INDEMNITY. OBLIGATIONS
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY..."Q;.;,,.; ..... . . Y
PUBLIC RECORD. ..t s

ASSIGNMENT......c..00orre W .. 4 ——
RFP ADDENDA .
SECTION 8: CONE OF SILENCE & PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES...oocccooovssesseceeseessnssssssses 15
CONE OF SILENCE@R .rccevrvrso B e ceerersrenss s s ssssmsssnssnsss s ssssns 15
PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES .ot sssoscos oo oo oo oo 16
APPENDIX ool oo ves s e s et s ppasm s s spp s 17
APPENDIX A: SAMPLE LIST OF TYPICAL RETAILER TYPES...oovvovoeeceeeeessssssssssss e 18
APPENDIX B: REQUIRED RESPONSE FORM ....ccooerereeereseseseeeesesoeooeooemesssssssss s s seseee 20
APPENDIX C: PROPOSAL ORGANIZATION AND SUBMITTAL GUIDELINES.............covnne. 23

APPENDIX D: AFFIDAVIT ottt ettt ettt sttt s bt e es et e e s s ea 26



City of Avon Park

SECTION 1: PROJECT SUMMARY

The City of Avon Park invites proposals for the purchase and development of a prime real estate
parcel on its historic downtown Main Street. The city is seeking development proposals
(“Proposals”) from qualified firms (“Developers”) for the opportunity to purchase and develop a
10,000 square foot parcel of City-owned Property (“Property”) located on the corner of W Main
Street and S Forest Avenue.

Due to its location on Main Street, and its proximity to US Highway 27, the City considers this

Property a significant asset that offers unique commerciﬁ development opportunities, which

highlight the need for development. Currently the pa/},/c;é' ned C-4 Mixed-Use Commercial.
//

77

N

DEVELOPMENT VISION

tis still emerging. T
1 that willadd to the va
) is to create an /

The complete vision for the Property’s develo
premier mixed-use project that will be a destina
surrounding neighborhood. The visi
residents and visitors will shop, worl
connectivity to the historic Mall, Do

rall plan is for a
, of the

y7b/ased commu n'it,);"/\;vhere local
attractive environment with

The City will look at Developer proposals
market demand for thé prop

st economic
; ic and financial benefits. Note: All land-use
changes will require Planniyng Corrj
Developer’s proposal does not gu:

ite planningﬂ”bf;'t'hg Propeg No discount retailers or fast-food drive-thru
restaurant ,,f/'WiI,I be allowed lthln the development, and this restriction will be incorporated
into a deed /'r;"ies‘t:rich’tion. Restaﬁ;é’nts defined as fast-casual are permitted. (Please see Appendix
A for examples of fast-casual, lif style, and neighborhood retailers).

SECTION 2: PROJECT INTRODUCTION
COMMUNITY OVERVIEW

The City of Avon Park is a U.S. historic district located in Highlands County, Florida. It contains
13 historic buildings which run along Main Street from South Delaney Avenue to U.S. 27. It is
known as the "City of Charm.” Nestled in Central Florida, Avon Park is famous for its citrus and
its mile long Mall centered along Main Street. According to the US Census QuickFacts, the
population was estimated at 10,689 as of July 1, 2019. The City is approximately 7.1 square
miles in size.



City of Avon Park

SITE OVERVIEW

The Property is located at 101 W. Main Street in downtown Avon Park. It is within the Main
Street Community Redevelopment Agency. The parcel number is A-22-33-28-010-0700-0010.
The size of the parcel is 10,000 square feet. The property is the former location of the Wilde
Building. The demolition of the Wilde Building is complete and the parcel is currently a shovel-
ready empty grass lot.

[INSERT GOOGLE MAP SATELLITE VIEW]

@
@ L
///// <

L R &
| AV & @
///////////// \ V' o Qg
_



City of Avon Park

ONALLY BLANK]



City of Avon Park

GENERAL PROJECT COMMENTS / STANDARD OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The intended outcome of this Request for Proposals (“RFP”) process is to identify a Developer
and enter an Exclusive Right to Negotiate Agreement (“ERN”) that will establish terms and
conditions and further define the scope, design, general use, and development program for the
Project upon which the selected Developer can purchase and develop the Property. The City, at
its discretion, could require a public presentation process. The City reserves the right to enter
into contract negotiations with the selected Proposer(s). If the City and the Proposer(s) do not
agree to the terms of the Purchase and Sale Agreement (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Agreement”), then the City may elect to terminate negotiations’and begin negotiating with the
second highest ranked proposer and so forth. This process continue until a contract has
been executed, or all submittals have been rejected, al igh the City also maintains the right
to reject all proposals at any time. No propose shall haye any and/or rights against the
City arising from such negotiation and/or the quali'fieation proce )

During the RFP period, Developers and their ¢ em onees agents, or representatlves shall have
the right of reasonable access to the Property durlng regulart busrness hours Upon reasonable
advance notice, to inspect the Property, undertake any:nec ssary testing, and otherwuse
conduct due diligence to ensure that the Property is suitable for the Developer s intended use.
Notwithstanding anything else in this Request for Proposals Developer shall defend, indemnify,
and hold the City, its employees, officers, 'and agents harmless from any injury, property
damage, or liability arising-out of the exer ise by Developer of thls rlght of access, other than
injury, property damage or- lrabrllty relatmg to the gross neglrgence or willful misconduct of the
City or its officers, agents or employees \ 7

SECTION 3: PROPOSAL QUESTIONS

To evaluate the alternatlves and a55|st in the selectlon of a Developer, the City is requesting
development proposals that will help the City finalize its vision and move ahead with the
Property’s dlsposmon and development Proposals must address the following items:

1. Description of the Developer's proposed project:
a. Size'in square foo"tage of the proposed buildings and all other uses and spaces.
b. Type of use(s) planned (e.g., retail, office, commercial, business park, or mixed-
use combination).
c. Conceptual design, architectural theme(s), & character imagery.
d. Site Plan(s) — macro and micro as needed.
e. Proposed retailers, types of retailers, and other tenant-type information.

2. Description of the Developer’s prior experience in developing similar types of
projects elsewhere:
a. Name and location of project(s)
b. Description of project(s)
c. Completion date of project(s)



City of Avon Park

d.

Experience in dealing with other governmental agencies (County, City, or
District) developing projects and/or experience in purchasing government
property for private development. The Developer shall also describe previous
projects in close relation with similar context.

3. Explanation of the role the Developer’s company will play in the proposed project
and a list of other partners and their roles (if any). A list of the Developer’s proposed
team for key roles such as general contractor, site planning, engineering,
architecture, and other consultants should also be included. Any change to the
Developer’s proposed team will require the consent of the City, which may be
delayed or withheld in the sole discretion of the City for any reason or no reason.

4. The proposed general timeframe for the development of the Developer’s proposed
project. It multiple components or phases are planned, provide detail on each of the
intended phases or components and their respective timeframes.

5. Description of the benefit(s) your proposed project brings to the City including:

@ o a0 o

Purchase price offered for the Property.

Funding sources (funding and/or financing capacity).

Projected property tax revenues anticipated from the proposed project.
Projected sales tax and other revenues from the project (if applicable).
Projected number of direct jobs created.

Other benefits to the City.

Market studies showing demand for the proposed uses, a list of potential
tenants or “tenant-types,” and the intended ownership type(s), ground leases,
and leasing programs for the project upon completion.

SECTION 4: INQUIRIES

Please direct all inquiries concerning this RFP to:

City of Avon Park

Attn: Purchasing Agent

110 E. Main Street

Avon Park, FL 33825

Email: Amogle@avonpark.city

All questions will be answered via addenda and will be posted on the City’s website. It is the
responsibility of the respondents to check back to the website. Failure to do so may result in
rejection of a proposal.



City of Avon Park

SECTION 5: DEVELOPER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Following Developer selection and execution of an Exclusive Right to Negotiate an Agreement,
Developer shall proceed with detailed due diligence, pre-development planning, and pre-
entitlement activities while working with the City to negotiate a Purchase and Sale Agreement
for the Property.

The City anticipates that the general scope of the successful Developer team’s responsibilities
would include responsibilities usually handled by developers of like-kind projects, including but

not limited to:

ENTITLEMENTS

I

The Developer shall be responsible for all aspects of.,the Property s design and approvals,
including pre-development planning, envrronmental review, and site plannlng The selected
Developer shall be responsible, at its sole cost, expense and risk for obtammg all land use
entitlements and all other governmental approvals’ required | for its proposed development. The
selection of a Developer and/or any. other purchase negotylatlons with the Clty does not
constitute the City’s approval nor guarantee the Develo s proposed project will be approved
by the City or any other governmental agencres Q)

During the Negotiation Period, the selected Developer shall prepare and process an Initial Study
and undertake all other actions required for Clty approval of the project at the Developer’s
expense. In addition to the Initial Study, the Developer may, durlng the Negotiation Period,
without any guaranty of approval therefore, seek the approval of the City of a General Plan
amendment, zoning change and any subdlwsnon entrtlements that may be required for the
development of the prOJect . / )

| P,RVVYE-DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The selected Déveloper shall ‘bearv all predevelopment costs and all costs as may be required by
the contract to be executed by'/'rhe parties relating to this project. All fees or expenses of
engineers, architects, financial consultants, attorneys, planning or other consultants or
contractors retained by,’DeveIoper for any study, analysis, evaluation, report, schedule,
estimate, environmental review, surveys, planning and/or design activities, drawings,
specifications or other activities or matters relating to the project shall be the sole responsibility
of the Developer and no such activity, or matter shall be deemed to be undertaken for the
benefit of, at the expense of, or in reliance upon the City. Notwithstanding Developer’s
expenditures as set forth above, the City may, at its sole and absolute discretion, at any time,
reject any and all, or parts of any and all proposals, re-advertise this solicitation, postpone or
cancel, at any time, this solicitation process, waive any irregularities in this solicitation, or in the
proposals received as a result of this solicitation.



City of Avon Park

DEPOSIT

The selected Developer shall reimburse the City for the actual out-of-pocket costs and expenses
incurred (fees for consultants, attorneys, surveyors, engineers, title reports, and appraisal
costs) in negotiating and preparing the Purchase and Sale Agreement and fulfilling its
obligations under this RFP and the Purchase and Sale Agreement (“Reimbursable Costs”).
Developer shall deposit with the City the sum of Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars ($35,000.00)
(“Deposit Funds”). The Deposit Funds shall be used and applied from time to time by the City to
pay itself for the Reimbursable Costs without consent or approval from Proposer.

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

The City and Developer acknowledge that the Clty must exerci /thS independent legislative
authority in making any and all findings and determ nations reqwred of it by law concerning the
Parcel. Developer selection does not restrict the Ieglslative authorlty of the City in any manner
whatsoever. It does not obligate the City to enter into the Exclusive nght to Negotiate
Agreement, a Purchase and Sale Agreement, or take any course}of action with respect to the
Property. ' s

FINANCING

The Developer shall be responsuble for prowdmg t/he;?n"'ndmg for/t.he project, whether in debt
financing, equity, tax credlts mcentnves ora comblnatlon of these methods. If debt financing is
used, no financial r|sk or credit rlsk shaII be lmposed upon or borne by the City.

CONST,RUCTION
The Developer shall be responsnble shall be responsuble for the demolition of existing
structures;.construction, and commISSIonmg of the project, including obtaining all permits, fees,
and approvals necessary for the PrOJect s.construction and obtaining all final certifications,
certificates of occupancy, and all of the final approvals for the project.

SECTION GA: ’PROPOSA’L INASTRUCTIONS

A complete, concise, and professional response to this RFP will enable the City to evaluate and
identify the Developer who will provide the highest benefit to the community and indicate the
level of the Developer’s experience and commitment to the proposed project. Proposals must
demonstrate that the proposed project’s approach, design, and financing plan will allow for the
project’s successful development and delivery.

To be considered, interested respondents must hand deliver or mail in all requested materials
by Tuesday, February 28, 2023, by 11:00 A.M. (EST). All proposals must be sealed and
addressed to City of Avon Park, ATTN: Purchasing Agent (RFP #2023 001), 110 E. Main Street,
Avon Park, FL 33925. (Emailed or faxed submittals will not be accepted).

10



City of Avon Park

ALL SUBMITTALS MUST INCLUDE:

e One (1) original and five (5) copies of the proposal; each marked accordingly as
“original” or “copy.”

e The Response Form (Appendix B) and the Affidavit (Appendix D).

e Follow the Proposal Organization and Submittal Guidelines (Appendix C).

e One (1) Flash drive containing all materials submitted in PDF format.

All proposals shall be publicly opened and rs on Tuesday, February 28,
2023, at 11:00 A.M. (EST). Late submittals wil e accepted or considered.

evaluating each proposal submitted. To expeé
be no more that thirty pages (inclusive of cov

1e Dev o"(pﬂf’s stateh‘ie;'rijt of qualifications
‘ Fmancmg ‘sources ling and/or financing capacity)
©_Anarrative descrlpt  that expresses the Developer’s understanding
"'of the Clty s vision for the project’s development. The narrative
should reflect the respondent’s development design intent, strategy,
|mplementat|on expertlse and understanding of the scope of work.
o) Resumes with related expertise of the specific Developer and any
) other consultant or subcontractor resumes with relevant expertise
'{’and experience.
o ngelopers shall describe their plan for public outreach and input on
any potential plans to the residents during the approval process.

e Descriptions for approximately three (3) of the Developer’s recently completed
projects that demonstrate the Developer’s:
o Experience working with municipalities and/or other public agencies
to develop either smart retail, business park, commercial, and/or
mixed-use projects.

11



City of Avon Park

Standard Statements

o Ability to complete projects of a similar size, scope, and purpose in a
timely manner.

o Description of any other completed projects (representative
examples) of similar types of projects. Include addresses, telephone
numbers, and the names of reference contacts for each project.
Similar project experience descriptions should be submitted for all
key consultants.

Proposed offer price to purchase the Property.

Analysis of the proposed job creation potential, market demand, and the
economic and financial benefits of various use ’roposed for the Property.

The Developer’s proposed approach for undertaklng this development including
detailed schedules for both the pre- devel' pme ntitlements and approvals
and the subsequent horizontal and vertlcal construction.

A statement that this RFP shall be mcorporated in its entlrety as a part of the
Developer’s proposa| Yy o

A statement that this RFP and the Developer s proposal will Jomtly become part
of the “Exclusive nght to Negotlate" (“ERN™) Agreement for this project when
the ERN is fully executed by the Deve|oper and the City.

A statement that the Developer will not dlscrlmlnate against any employee or
apphcant for employment because of race color rehglon sex, or national origin.

The City will not be Iiable for any exp’enses incurre'd by Developers responding to this
solicitation. The City will retaln all material submltted Based upon the quality and quantity of
subm|55|ons the City reserves the rlght to conduct a Second Round Evaluation with a select
number of short-listed proposers !

SECTION 6B: SELECTION PROCESS

The Evaluation Committee (“Committee”) will execute the selection process. Each Committee
member will rank the proposals on a scale of 1 to 10 for a perfect score of 30.

Committee members shall tai'ke the following components into consideration:

ol S

0

Purchase price amount.

Architectural Design, Theme, and Conceptual Site Plan(s).

Conformance with the ideas, themes, and concepts detailed therein.
Quality of submittals as outlined in section 7A (experience with similar projects and
abilities).

Ability to attract appropriate commercial and retail tenants.

Creativity, uniqueness, and compelling ideas.

12



City of Avon Park

7. In-person presentations (20 minutes maximum).

After each committee member reviews the submittals and in-person presentations, each
member will submit a score for each respondent not to exceed 10 points. Based on the number
of respondents (proposers), the Committee reserves the right to “short-list” some developers
for advanced discussions. The Committee will then discuss all the proposals to select a
Developer for an ITN (Invitation to Negotiate). The Committee also reserves the right to reject
all proposals and elect to re-start the process. Further, and for the avoidance of any doubt, the
City reserves the right to negotiate any term, condition, specification, or price with selected
Proposer(s). In the event that mutually agreeable negotiation annot be reached with a
Proposer, the City may negotiate with the next ranked Pro . s) and so forth. This process
will continue until a contract has been executed, or alI subml s have been rejected. An
impasse may be declared by the City at any time. No proposer , 'all have any claims and/or
right against the City arising rom such negotlathn a",d/or the qual| cation process.

This RFP process was designed for respondents to propose ideas and dellver solutions for the
Property. The Developer with the best overall development program will be selected for the
ITN (Invitation to Negotiate). After the individual sc Mg/and in the event the Commlttee
cannot agree on a Developer, this RFP may be rendered null and void.

SECTION 7: STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ADDITIONAL INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS

Developer shall defend with counsel of the City's choosing, and at Developer’s own cost,
expense and risk, any and all clalms suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind that may
be brought or instituted agalnst the City and its offlcers agents, and employees as a result of
this RFP. Developer shall pay and satlsfy anyjudgment award, or decree that may be rendered
agamst the City and its officers, agents, and employees as part of any such claim, suit, action, or
other proceedlngs The Developer shall also reimburse the City for the cost of any settlement
paid by the City. Such reimbdrsement shall include payment for City’s attorney fees and
expenses, including expert witness fees. Developer shall reimburse City and its officers, agents,
and employees for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection
therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Any system or documents developed, produced, or provided in response to this RFP, including
any intellectual property discovered or developed by Developer in the course of performing or
otherwise as a result of its work, shall become the sole Property of the City unless explicitly
stated otherwise in the RFP response. The Developer may retain copies of any and all material,
including drawings, documents, and specifications, produced by the Developer in the
performance of this proposal. The City and the Developer agree that to the extent permitted by

13



City of Avon Park

law, until final approval by the City, all data shall be treated as confidential and will not be
released to third parties without both parties’ prior written consent.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

The Proposer shall not submit any information in response to this RFP which he or she
considers to be a trade secret or confidential. The submission of any information to the City
pursuant to or in any way in connection with this RFP shall be deemed conclusively to be a
waiver of any trade secret or other protection, which would otherwise be available to the
Proposer. If a Proposer submits information to the City in violation of this restriction, either
inadvertently or intentionally, and clearly identifies that information in the proposal as
protected or confidential, then the City shall endeavor to redact and return subject information
as quickly as possible, if appropriate. The City will then evaluate the balance of the proposal.
The redaction or return of information pursuant to this clause may render a proposal non-
responsive.

PUBLIC RECORD

Proposals received will become the Property of the City. Pursuant to Florida Law, all proposals,
evaluation documents, and any subsequent contracts will be subject to public disclosure. All
documents related to this solicitation will become public records once discussions and
negotiations with proposers have been completed and an award has been announced.

Appropriately identified trade secrets will be kept confidential to the extent permitted by law.
Any proposal section alleged to contain proprietary information will be identified by the
Proposer in boldface text at the top and bottom as “PROPRIETARY.” Designating the entire
proposal as proprietary is unacceptable and will not be honored. Submission of a proposal will
constitute an agreement to this provision for public records. Pricing information is not
considered proprietary information.

ASSIGNMENT

Developer selection includes consideration of the merits of the firm/team. Assignment of the
proposal is discouraged. The City reserves the right to cancel the contract if the contract is
assigned without the City’s advance written consent.

RFP ADDENDA
The City may determine it is necessary to revise any part of this solicitation. Revisions will be
made by written addenda, and it is the Developer’s responsibility to understand and comply

with any addenda to this solicitation. Failure to do so may result in a rejection of the proposal.

Addenda will be posted on the City’s website (www.avonpark.city under the “Bids and RFP’s”
tab. RFP # 2023-01.

14



City of Avon Park

Please direct all inquiries concerning this RFP to:

City of Avon Park

Attn: Purchasing Agent

110 E. Main Street

Avon Park, FL 33825

Telephone: (863)452-4400 extension 110
Email: Amogle@avonpark.city

SECTION 8: CONE OF SILENCE AND PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

CONE OF SILENCE

After the advertisement, a “Cone of Silence” is imposed upon each RFP or RFQ. The Cone of
Silence prohibits any communication regarding RFP’s or RFQ’s between City Staff, its
Consultants, and Elected Officials, on the one hand, and potential Respondents to the RFP or
RFQ process and any representative thereof on the other hand. The Cone of Silence does not
apply to City personnel engaging in communication with parties with existing contracts as long
as discussions are not made regarding the RFP.

The Cone of Silence shall not apply to:

i il

o w

0 0N

Verbal communications at pre-bid conferences, if applicable.

Verbal presentations before selection of evaluation committees.

Public presentations made to the City during any duly noticed public meeting.
Written communications regarding a particular RFP, RFQ, or bid between a potential
vendor, service provider, Respondent, bidder, lobbyist, consultant and the City’s
Purchasing Agent or City employee designated responsible for administering the
procurement process of such RFP, RFQ or bid, provided the communication is
limited strictly to matters of process or procedure already contained in the
corresponding solicitation document.

Communications with the City Attorney and their staff.

Duly noticed site visits to determine the competency of bidders/Respondents
regarding a particular bid/proposal during the time allowed within the RFP.

Any emergency procurement of goods or services pursuant to state law.
Responses to the City’s request for clarification or additional information.
Contract negotiations with selected bidder.

. Communications to enable City staff and its consultants to seek and obtain industry

comment or perform market research; provided all communications related thereto
are between a potential vendor, service provider, respondent, bidder lobbyist, or
consultant and any member of the City’s professional staff, including, but not limited
to, the City Manager and its staff.

15



City of Avon Park

Violation of the Cone of Silence by a Developer, Developer’s representative, or any respondent
shall render their proposal void.

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

Pursuant to Paragraph 2(a)of Section 287.133 of the Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who
has been placed on the convicted vendor list flowing a conviction for a public entity crime may
not submit a proposal for a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not
submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the con/gruction or repair of a public
building or public work; may not submit proposals on Iease}//%é///gzal Property to a public entity;
may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier,

above the threshold amount provided in Section 287.0

Two for thirty-six (36) months form the date of bei

pplier, subcontractor, or consultant
under a contract with any public entity; and my not trans:

usiness with any public entity

16



City of Avon Park

APPENDIX
. y
Appendix A: Sample List of Typlcalyai’(/////ﬁypes
9
%////////,
. . y <
Appendix B: Required Response Form ////////
/ @
&
Y
'o/%//?//né//(/ubmittal Guidelines

Appendix C: Proposal Or
L

ni and !
L& ©

aniz
«
A\

ati
O G

Appendi /////%/ 0

&
QA

N

N\

Q

NN
A NN

17



City of Avon Park

APPENDIX A: SAMPLE LIST OF TYPICAL RETAILER TYPES

The following information should be used solely as a guide to the types of retail desired within
the project. This is only a guide identifying the kinds of retailers the City would like to see
incorporated into the commercial development. This is not an endorsement, nor a preference
of any specific company or brand as numerous other retailers will collectively combine to create
the overall theme for the project. Proposers should have a plan to attract a combination from
the categories listed below.

-Lens Crafters
-LEGO

-LV
-Lululemon/AthIet"‘ a
-Pandora
—Pottery Barn
-Sephora” .
-Sunglass Huta,,
-Victoria’s Secret .
-Vineyard Vines
-Warby Parker
-West Elm

,_ ’-OrangeQT‘heory
;—Other Fmancual

Servnces

—Yoga Studlos i

“-Panera Bread

Hard Goods Soft Goods Experiential & Others
-Adidas -9 Round -Andretti Racing
-Apple -Aspen Dental -Bowlero
-Blue Mercury -Banking -Chicken & Crayola
-Carolina Herrera -Barry’s Bootcamp Experience
-Crate & Barrell -Club Pilates scape Room
-Everything but -Cycle Bar —GameWorks
Water -Day Spa . -Pop Stroke
-GNC -Dry Bar/ Blow Bar -Rock & Brews
-Gift Shops -FedEx : -Strike 10
-Gucci -Hair Salons , -Tesla
-H&M ,,er/Core/'p'g" er -Two Bit Circus
-Jewelry Stores ] -Whirly Ball

-Ruth Chris
-Seasons 52
-Seed the Table
-Starbucks
-Shake Shack
-Tap 42

Additional suggestions: The overall project should be compatible with the surrounding areas
and serve local residents, visitors, and the area’s workforce. The retail components should be a
combination of family-oriented offerings, experiential offerings, trendy offerings, and
traditional neighborhood offerings. Discount retailers, fast food restaurants, or outlet-type
stores should not be included.

18



City of Avon Park

19



City of Avon Park

APPENDIX B: REQUIRED RESPONSE FORM

RFEP# RFP TITLE: RELEASE DATE

2023-01 Avon Park Mixed-Use Commercial Redevelopment January 30, 2023
of Parcel at 101 W. Main Street

DATE DUE: TIME DUE- | ORIGINAL HARD PI}OPOSAL & COMPLETE
ATOR | COPY PROPOSAL | ELECTRONIC
BEFORE: & APPENDIX DDITIONAL COPY OF
REQUIRED: /| HARD COPIES PROPOSAL
\ REQUIRED: REQUIRED:
FEBRUARY 28,2023 | 11:00 A.M. 1
(EST) SINGLE ADOBE
PDF FILE

PROPOSER’S NAME: ./

STREET ADDRESS:

CITY AND STATE"

FAX:

PROPOSER S TELEPHONE ,

CONTACT ,PERSON

CONTACT ADDRESS: ‘

CONTACT TELEEHd’NE- FAX:

CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS 4 COMPANY WEBSITE:

PROPOSER TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:

How were you informed of this solicitation? (please provide media name(s) in blank space):

Website: Newspaper: Other:

20



City of Avon Park

APPENDIX B: REQUIRED RESPONSE FORM-CONTINUED

PROPOSAL CERTIFICATOIN

| hereby certify that | am submitting the following information as my firm’s (Proposer) proposal
and am authorized by Proposer to do so. Proposer agrees to complete and/or provide all
information required by this document inclusive of this request for proposals, and all
attachments, exhibits and appendices and the contents of any Addenda released hereto,
Proposer agrees to be bound to any and all specnflcatloni 'arms and conditions contained in
this solicitation, and any released Addenda and understand that these are requirements of this
solicitation and failure to comply may result in d|squa||f|cat|on( of proposal submitted. Proposer
has not divulged, discussed or compared the proposal with other proposers and has not
colluded with any other proposer or party to any other proposal; Proposer acknowledges that
all information contained herein is part of the publlc domain as defined by the State of Florida
Sunshine and Public Record Laws; all responses, date and lnformatlon contamed in this
proposal are true and accurate. wy '

Signature of Proposer’s Authorizad Principal 9 Date

Name of Propdser's‘Authoirizéd Principal_ A Title of Proposer’s Authorized Principal

NOTE: Entries must be com‘p|ented in ink ortypeWritteh.

21



City of Avon Park

22



City of Avon Park

APPENDIX C: PROPOSAL ORGANIZATION AND SUBMITTAL GUIDELINES

INFORMATION TO BE INCLUDED IN THE SUBMITTAL

In order to maintain comparability and facilitate the review process, it is strongly recommended
that Developer’s Proposals be organized in the manner specified below. Include all information
outlined below in your submittal.

1. REQUIRED RESPONSE FORM Include “Appendix B” fllle | out in its entirety and signed by an
authorized representative of the Developer.

2.1
2.2

2.3

2.4

" hames f'appllcable )

., 246 List of proposed consultants/lncludlng architect, engineer, contractors,

“_andothers )

v 4.7 Identlfy prlor successfully completed development projects and
experlence with’ prOJects of similar size, scale, and budget

3. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL Prov1de a Project concept overview with timeline(s) from contract
execution through Pro;v "g,completmn Provide relevant information regarding the

following:
3.1 Overall project theme, architectural design, unique characteristics, and benefits
to the City
3.2 Identify proposed uses and high-level market analysis supporting demand for
these uses

33 Schematic site plans on both a large-scale and detailed level, as needed

3.4 Renderings and/or perspectives of the design concepts

3.5 Concepts and other background for the proposed retail and other commercial
offerings, including any creative or innovative ideas for the Project

23



City of Avon Park

3.6 Statement regarding the Project’s connectivity to the adjacent properties
3.7 Schedules and estimated timelines for the design, approvals, permitting, and
construction of the Project (Include a phasing plan if applicable)

4. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL AND INFORMATION
4.1 Terms of Offer: Provide a brief-term sheet outlining the proposed price, key
business terms, and closing conditions
4.2 Approvals: Detail the current status of internal and external approvals both
received and outstanding from partners, lenders, equity investors, and others if needed
4.3 Capitalization: Describe Developer’s expectatlo"s ‘with regards to debt and
equity levels, proposed equity sources, availability to obtaln debt, and prior transactions
with intended capital providers '

24



City of Avon Park

25



City of Avon Park

APPENDIX D: AFFIDAVIT

CITY OF AVON PARK
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO.: 2023-01

SINGLE EXECUTION AFFIDAVITS

THIS FORM COMBINES SEVERAL AFFIDAVIT STATEMENTS TO BE SWORN TO BY THE
PROPOSER OR BIDDER AND NOTARIZED BELOW. IN THE EVENT THE PROPOSER OR BIDDER
CANNOT SWEAR TO ANY OF THESE AFFIDAVIT STATEMEN 'V,THE PROPOSER OR BIDDER IS
DEEMED TO BE NON-RESPONSIVE AND IS NOT ELIGIBLE'T SUBMITA PROPOSAL/BID.

THESE SINGLE EXECUTION AFFIDAVITS ARE SfI'ATEMENTV'S MADE ON BEHALF OF:

NAME OF PROPOSING OR

INDIVIDUAL'S NAME AND TITLE
BIDDING ENTITY

FEIN OF PROPOSING OR
BIDDING ENTITY

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE AFFIDAVIT

The above-named firm, corporatlon or organlzatlon is in compliance with and agrees to
continue to comply with, and assure that any. subcontractor or third-party contractor under
this prOJect complles W|th all appllcable requnrements of the laws listed below including, but not
limited to, those prOVISIOI‘IS pertamlng to employment provision of programs and services,
transportation, commumcatlons access to facilities, renovations, and new construction.

e The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), Pub. L. 101-336, 104 Stat 327,
42 USC Section 121,01 and 47 USC Sections 225 and 661 including Title |,
Employment; Title 1l, Public Services; Title Ill, Public Accommodations and
Services Operated by Private Entities; Title IV, Telecommunications; and Title V,
Miscellaneous Provisions.

e The Florida Americans with Disabilities Accessibility Implementation Act of 1993,
Section 553.501-553.513, Florida Statutes.

e The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 229 USC Section 1612.

e The Federal Transit Act, as amended 49 USC Section 1612.

e The Fair Housing Act, as amended 42 USC Sections 3601-3631.

Proposer Initials

26



City of Avon Park

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES AFFIDAVIT

| understand that a “public entity crime” as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), Florida
Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly
related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political
subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including but not limited to, any bid or
contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political
subdivision of any other state or of the United States and mvolvmg antitrust, fraud, theft,
bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misre esentatlons

| understand that “convicted” or “conviction” as deflned m_Pa graph 287.133(1)(b), Florida
Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an
adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial co r/, »of record relatlng to charges brought by
indictment or information after July 1, 1989, asar sult of a jury verdlct, non-jury trial, or entry
of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.

| understand that an “affiliate” as defmed in Paragraph 287 133(1)( ), FIorid/a' Statutes, means:

1. A predecessor or successor of a person conwcted of a public entity crime; or

2. An entity under the control of any natura| person who is active in the management
of the entity ¢ and who has been conwcted ofa publlc entity crime. The term
“affiliate”. includes those officers, dtrectors executives, partners, shareholders,
employees members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate.
The ownershlp by one person of shares constltutung a controlling interest in another
person or-a pooling of equnpment or income among persons when not for fair
market value under an arm’s length shall be a prima facie case that one person
controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a

“person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the
preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

| understand that a “person” as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any
natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the
legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for
the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies
to transact business with a public entity. The term “person” includes those officers, directors,
executives, and partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the
management of an entity.

Based on information and belief, the statement which | have marked below, is true in relation
to the entity submitting this sworn statement.

27



City of Avon Park

(INDICATE WHICH STATEMENT APPLIES)

o Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers,
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents
who are active in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity
has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July
1, 1989.

o The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers,
directors, executives, partners, shareholders ‘ mployees members, or agents,
who are active in the management of th n ity has been charged with and
convicted of a public entity crime subsequent toJ"" y 1, 1989.

o The entity submitting this sworn statement or one or'more of its officers,
directors, executives, partners shareholders employees members or agents
who are active in the management of the entity, or an afflhate of the entity has
been charged with and convicted of a publlc entity crime subsequent toJuly 1,
1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing
Officer of the State of Florlda D|V|S|on of Admlnlstratlve Hearings and the final
Order entered by the Hearlng Offlcer determlned that it was not in the public
interest to place the entity’ submlttlng th|s sworn statement on the convicted
vendor I|st (attach a copy of the flnal Order) ’

| understand that the submission of this form to the contracting officer for any public entity is
for that public entity only and that this form is valld through December 31 of the calendar year
in which it is filed. I'also understand that 1 am requnred to inform the public entity prior to
enterrng into a contract in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida
Statutes for category two ofany change in the information contained in the form.

Proposernitials

NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST OR CONTINGENT FEE AFFIDAVIT

Proposer warrants that neither it nor any principal, employee, agent, representative nor family
member has paid or will pay any fee or consideration that is contingent on the award or
execution of a contract arising out of this solicitation. Proposer also warrants that neither it nor
any principal, employee, agent, representative nor family member has procured or attempted
to procure this contract in violation of any of the provisions of any conflict of interest or code of
ethics ordinances. Further, Proposer acknowledges that any violation of these warrants will
result in the termination of the contract and forfeiture of funds paid or to be paid to the
Proposer should the Proposer be selected for the performance of this contract.

28



City of Avon Park

Proposer Initials

BUSINESS ENTITY AFFIDAVIT

Proposer hereby recognizes and certifies that no elected official, board member, or employee

of the CITY OF AVON PARK (“the City”) shall have a financial interest directly or indirectly in this
transaction or any compensation to be paid under or through’ t"”"'s transaction, and further, that
no City employee, nor any elected or appointed officer (inc hg City Council members) of the
or appointed officer of the

party to a violation of any appllcable ethlc ordi
112, part III Fla. Stat. the Code of Ethics for Publl”'

and may be further di
services to the City.”

/uahﬂed from submitting an futdre ;bldS or proposals for goods or

Proposer Initials

), ANTl-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

1. Proposer/Bldder has personal knowledge of the matters set forth in its Proposal/Bid
and is fuIIy mformed respectlng the preparation and contents of the attached
Proposa|/B|d and all pertment circumstances respecting the Proposal/Bid; and

2. The ProposaI/Bid/is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Proposal/Bid; and

3. Neither the Proposer/Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents,
representatives, employees, or parties in interest, including Affiant, has in any way
colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed, directly or indirectly with any other
Proposer/Bidder, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham Proposal/Bid, or has
in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or
communication or conference with any other Proposer/Bidder, firm, or person to fix
the price or prices in the attached Proposal/Bid or of any other Proposer/Bidder, or

29



City of Avon Park

to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the Proposal/Bid price or the
Proposal/Bid price of any other Proposer/Bidder, or to secure through any collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the CITY OF
AVON PARK or any person interested in the proposed Contract.

Proposer Initials

,
e &

. Y

_ .
//////////////// /////

@
.

S
e @
@ ¢
Y

///////// o
// _ o
//////////////////////// % B U
@ G

////

.
©

. QO &

W

30



City of Avon Park

SWORN SIGNATURE OF PROPOSING ENTITY REPRESENTATIVE AND NOTARIZATION

FOR ALL ABOVE AFFIDAVITS.

In the presence of:

WITNESS #1-SIGNATURE

WITNESS #1- PRINT NAME

WITNESS #2- SIGNATURE

WITNESS #2- PRINT NAME

State of Florida
County of

On this .___day of |

Signed, sealed and delivered by:

PROPOSER SIGNATURE

 PROPOSER- NAMEAND TITLE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

, 2023, be’fore me, the undersigned, personally

appeared, whose name(s) is/are

subscribed to the within

instrument, and he/she/they acknowledgexthat he/she/they executed it.

O O O O

Personally known to me; or

Produced identification (Type of Identification: )
Did take an oath; or

Did not take an oath

Notary Public (Print, Stamp, or Type as Commissioned)

31



City of Avon Park

32



Agenda Iltem Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023

Subject: Discussion of Possible Foreclosure Action —504 N. Lake Ave
Item No.: E-10

Placed on Agenda by: Code Enforcement Supervisor, Randy LaBelle
Staff Review: Yes

Attorney Review: Yes
Recommended Motion(s):

Documentation:

e Magistrate’s Order
e Code Enforcement Notes
e Parcel information
e Tax Collector Information
e Photos of property

Background:



CODE ENFORCEMENT
SPECIAL MAGISTRATE FOR
THE CITY OF AVON PARK, HIGHLANDS COUNTY, FLORIDA

CITY OF AVON PARK, FLORIDA, Pctitioner,

Case No.: QQ"‘%BS
Property address: 04 N L AKE AVE

Rcspnndunl( s) Strap No. ﬁj&é}&{“&'u D*‘(‘])QD—OULO
/

MMLQKEAVE LUC/

SPECIAL MAGISTRATE’S ORDER
REPEAT VIOLATIONS

THIS CAUSE came (0 be heard belge the Special Magistrate for the City of Avon Park at a hearing
commencing at \ A 7\@ on JUNE 22M2 20 22 afier due notice to Respondent, and

the un(luslgncd Sp(,u.nl Magistrate having heard testimony under oath and duly considered the evidence
presented and being otherwise fully advised in the premisces, doces hercupon render the following Findings
of Iact, Conclusions of Law and Order as follows:

TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE

Appearing before the Special Magistrate was the City’s Code Enforcement Officer
T TEKKANTE  (+Officer™), who testified upder oath based on personal observation that:
a.  Analleged violation condition riexisted / f still exists on the Property gencrally

described as follows: Q()(F MNW NU“MSEM)M% m WWS

B (Violation™)
b. The City alleges that the condition is a Violation of C ity Codes as follows:

SEL. 2240 NupiMuM MAWNT ; 22-1603(L,) POSTING OF NUMBELS

c¢. The condition in qucslnon was [irst observed by the Officer on PRI Sm s 2() Z'L
and the violation is a repeat offense because it occurred previously (within five yuus at any location) on

June \"Tﬂl 15,2020 M/ and other occasions within five years.

d. [0 A Notice of Violation (“"NOV™) for this alleged repeat violation was issued and
properly served on the Respondent ()HAQQ)L SIH- .20 22, describing the alleged Violation, notifying,
the violator that it is a repeat offense, informing the violator of actions necessary to correct the violation,
and sctting this case for hearmg.

! [J/\ Notice to Appear (“N'T'A”) at a Special Magistrate Hearing was served on the
Respondent on JUNE 2ND 5022 for this Hearing.
j’l‘hc Code Enforcement Officer’s file has been entered into evidence by the Special Magistrate and
contains proof of service of the NOV and N'T'A, as well as the City’s evidence of the violation condition.
Documents and/or photographic evidence for the Respondent were entered into evidence by the
Special Magistrate. The Respondent testimony claimed

"

Page 1 of 2



FINDING OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Special Magistrate hereby makes the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law:

2

0.

THAT the Special Magistrate has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the Respondent.
THAT RespondentHOH N LAKE AVE UlRose mailing address is SoN) UAKE AVE |
is the Ll agent of the Property owner or L the person responsible for creation of the Violation
and [ was or [ was not present at the hearing,.

THAT additional Respondents [l arc or [1] are not involved in the Violation, and (indings for
them are stated on attached Fxhibits.

THAT the Respondent was properly notified of the violation condition and the hearing,

THA'T the condition of the Property was a Violation of : L)

of the City of Avon Park Code of Ordinances as it existed on mb5&k L2092 [ s [ is
not, supported by competent substantial evidence in the record.

THA'T the violation [ is; [ is not, a repeat offense as delined in section 164.04(5) I'S

THAT although a violation was in existence on .20 Lithas [ been corrected
before this hearing and no longer exists or [ remains in existence.

L1 THA'T the Respondent has chosen (o argue against the NOV at the hearing; or, L1 chosen (o

waive rights to hearing, and pay the daily fine and administrative costs.

Based upon the foregoing Findings of IFact and Conclusions of Law, and upon consideration of the
gravity ol the violation; actions taken by the Respondent to correct the violation(s); whether it is a
repeat offense, and, any previous violations committed by the Respondent, I'T 1S THEREFORY,

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS:

[, L THAT this matter shall be continued until aan/p.am. on ) .20
2. L THAT because the Respondent has corrected the Violation, the City’s claim is dismissed, with [

or without L1 administrative costs ol $ . The Respondent is admonished that a future
violation of the same Section of the Code ol Ordinances of the City of Avon Park may result in an
immediate fine regardless ol whether the subsequent violation is remedied.

3. THAT the evidence does not support the violation cited. This case is hereby dismissed.

4. CITHAT I the violation is not corrected l)UQ[)‘WOé@» . Respondent shall pay an
administrative fine in the amount ol $ 000 - < beginning on that date and continuing, cach day
thercalter until the Property is o compliance by taking, the necessary corrective actions described
below, plus administrative costs.

The burden shall rest upon the Respondeni(s) to request a re-inspeciion by a City Code
Isaforcement Officer (o determine whether the violation has been brought into compliance.

Corrective Actions Required:

DONE AND ORDERED ON the ~ .« dayof _7er .20

City of Avon Park Code Enforcement Special Magistrate

Page 2 of 2



504 N LAKE AVE

22-13685 4/5/2022

START DATE: 7/23/2022

END DATE: CURRENTLY STILL RUNNING

@ $500 PER DAY

TOTAL AS OF TODAY (01/19/2023): $90,000.00

+ POSTAGE FEE: $14.66

+ RECORDING CHARGE: $18.50

+ RELEASE OF LIEN: $10.00

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ON 1/19/2023: $90,043.16
VIOLATION: MINIMUM MAINENANCE ON COLLASPE GARAGE, ROTTING WOOD ON THE EXTERIOR, ROOF
MAINTENANCE AND NO HOUSE NUMBERS

SINCE 2006 THE RESIDENCE HAS BEEN CITED OVER 17 TIMES FOR NUMEROUS VIOLATIONS LIKE
FENCE MAINTENANCE, NUISANCE (OVERGROWN GRASS), ABANDON VEHICLES AND MINIMUM
MAINTENANCE ISSUES SUCH AS CHIPPING AND PEELING PAINT, ROTTING WOOD ON THE
EXTERIOR, AND BOARDED WINDOWS.



1/19/23, 2:46 PM A-22-33-28-010-0020-0040 - Highlands County Property Appraiser

Parcel A-22-33-28-010-0020-0040

504 N LAKE AVE
AVON PARK, FL 33825

Owners:
504 N LAKE AVE LLC

Mailing Address
709 SW 14TH CT
FT LAUDERDALE, FL 33315

DOR Code: 01 - SINGLE FAMILY

Neighborhood: 1026.00 - AVON PARK SE1/4 OF 15 & NE1/4 OF 22
Millage: 10 - Avon Park City Limits

Map ID: 23D

Legal Description

TOWN OF AVON PARK

IN 22-33-28

LOT 4-LESS N 140 FT + LESS
E 110 FT + ALL LOT 5-LESS

N 140 FT BLK 2

https://www.hcpao.org/Search/Parcel/28332201000200040A 1/6



ERIC T. ZWAYER
HIGHLANDS COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR

2022 REAL ESTATE
NOTICE OF AD VALOREM TAXES AND NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS

11154

10

ACCOUNT NUMBER

A223328-01000200040

ESCROW CD

PAY, SEARCH, OR PRINT RECEIPT ONLINE AT

WWW.HCTAXCOLLECTOR.COM
(863) 402-6685

9E:EH:20 £202/64/L0

504 N LAKE AVE LLC
709 SW 14THCT
FT LAUDERDALE, FL 33315

ITEXEMPTION CODES |

504 N LAKE AVE AVON PARK FL
TOWN OF AVON PARK

IN 22-33-28

LOT 4-LESS N 140 FT + LESS

*** SEE TAX ROLL FOR EXTRA LEGAL ***

PAY IN U.S. FUNDS TO ERIC T. ZWAYER, TAX COLLECTOR @ 540 S COMMERCE AVE SEBRING, FL 33370

ERIC T. ZWAYER
HIGHLANDS COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR

NOTICE OF AD VALOREM TAXES AND NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS

4 AD VALOREM TAXES o v » T

TAXING AUTHORITY ASSESSED EXEMPTION TAXABLE MILLAGE TAXESLEVIED & o 2

COUNTY GENERAL 106,626 0 106,626 8.1000 $863.67 g 83 3

SCHOOL GENERAL FUND 125,157 0 125,157 3.3030 $41339 P Z 9 =2

SCHOOL BASIC DISCRETIONARY 125,157 0 125,157 0.7480 $93.62 B o 5

SCHOOL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 125,157 0 125,157 1.5000 $187.74 B 2 3 o

SWFWM DISTRICT 106,626 0 106,626 0.2260 $24.10 S o g

CITY OF AVON PARK 106,626 0 106,626 4.3681 $465.75 5 3 2
g =
g
EEp
€23
=1~ (e
R
-]
s =
Q o @
g2

TOTAL AD-VALOREM TAXES 18.2451 $2,048.27 9 B2

\ . =

( NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS A

LEVYING AUTHORITY AMOUNT

CITY OF AVON PARK FIRE (088) $140.00

TOTAL NON AD-VALOREM ASSESSMENTS $140.00

. _J

(COMBINED TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS $2,188.27 ]

(1f Paid By Jan 31, 2023 Feb 28, 2023 Mar 31, 2023

Please Pay 2,144.50 2,166.39 2,188.27

If Paid By Jan 31, 2023 Feb 28, 2023 Mar 31, 2023 )
Please Pay 2,144.50 2,166.39 2,188.27 ——_
o m g
mC S
PAY IN U.S. FUNDS TO ERIC T. ZWAYER, TAX COLLECTOR @ 540 S COMMERCE AVE SEBRING, FL 33870 » Z 8
5 & 3
— m §
504 N LAKE AVE LLC B 3
e Ruilg 504 N LAKE AVE AVON PARK FL 03
FT LAUDERDALE, FL 33315 S L O 8 =
IN 22-33-28 22
LOT 4-LESS N 140 FT + LESS o
*++ SEE TAX ROLL FOR EXTRA LEGAL *** s
-
2022-REAL ESTATE 11154 7
ACCOUNT NUMBER ESCROW CD EXEMPTION CODES MILLAGE CODE
A223328-01000200040 10 |







lA;“ L Y
2l g

4







iy # <3

. oo gl e ®
~ - 1
b ety o D% b AR
SR R (g T L

.—‘.‘ A

iF

W ¢
7 et o, ¥ 4 o

5 e il RS e




Agenda Item Summary

Date of Action: January 23, 2023

Subject: City Manager Updates

Item No.: H-11

Placed on Agenda by: City Manager, Mark Schrader
Staff Review:

Attorney Review:
Recommended Motion(s):

Documentation:

Updates:

e AIPP/Lease
e Community Development Center, Inc. letter requesting two (2)
additional five (5) year terms.



AVON PARK

COMMUNITY CHILD
DEVELOPMENT CENTER, INC.

 Early childhood education is our business. We do it with love.

Date January 9, 2023

City of Avon Park
110 E. Main Street
Avon Park, FL 33825

Re: Lease
To: Mark Schrader, City Manger

This request to renew the lease by and between the City of Avon Park and the Avon Park
Community Development Center, Inc. Under the same terms and conditions contained the
original Lease dated January 1, 2013. We respectfully request the two (2) additional five (5)
year terms as contained in the agreement.

We fespectfully request a waiver of the provision regarding the 90-day notice prior to the end
of the proceeding Lease, which by its terms expired on January 1, 2023.

Sincerely,

i

Patricia Landress, Board President
Avon Park Community Development Center




	Agenda
	C-4 Minutes, January 9, 2023 
	D-5 Public Hearing, Second Reading: Ordinance 01-2023
	D-6 Draft Lease between City of AP and Nasgrass, Inc.
	D-7 Council to Vet Applicants, CRA Advisory Board, Southside Alternate Position
	D-8 Council to Vet Donna Parks, AP Police Pension Board
	D-9 Draft RFP City Owned Property (101 W Main Street)
	E-10 Discussion of Possible Foreclosure- 504 N Lake Ave
	H-11 City Manager Updates

